
Page 1 of 7 

 
  
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
MINUTES 

  
Meeting #83 

Wednesday, September 30, 2020, 7:00 p.m. 
LIVE - VIDEOCONFERENCE 

 
In Attendance:  Mayor Harold Mullowney 
    Mayor Danny Breen 
    Councillor Glenn Clarke 
    Councillor Wally Collins 
    Councillor Ian Froude 

Councillor Sandy Hickman 
Councillor Jamie Korab 

    Councillor Kevin McDonald 
Deputy Mayor Sheilagh O’Leary 

    Councillor Peggy Roche 
    Councillor Deanne Stapleton 
    Councillor Lucy Stoyles 

Deputy Mayor Sam Whalen 
    Councillor Sterling Willis  
 
 Regrets:  Councillor Maggie Burton 
    Councillor Dave Lane 
    Mayor Gerald Snook 

Councillor Gerard Tilley 
     
Other Attendees: Ms. Lynn Tucker 
    Mr. Craig Drover 
    Ms. Christie Dean 
    Ms. Holly Coles 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mr. Mullowney, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Mr. Mullowney introduced Mr. Bob Gammon, the Board’s newly elected member 
representing the Smith Sound and Isthmus Area. 



Page 2 of 7 

2. Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was tabled for approval. 

MOTION 2020-059 
Moved By Mr. Whalen 
 Seconded By Mr. Collins 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda be adopted as tabled.  

 Carried Unanimously 
 
 
3. Review of Minutes 

The minutes from the previous meeting were tabled for review and approval. 
 
MOTION 2020-060 
Moved By Mr. Collins 
Seconded By Mr. Willis 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Wednesday, August 19, 2020 be 
adopted as tabled.                                                                              Carried Unanimously 

  
 

4. Committee Reports 
 

a) Finance & Audit Committee 
 
Mr. Hickman delivered the Finance & Audit Committee report. 
 
1. Board Expenditures 

Board expenditures for the month of August were tabled for review and approval. 

MOTION 2020-061 
Moved By Mr. Hickman 
 Seconded By Mr. Breen 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the ERSB adopt the Board’s expenditures for August as 
tabled. 

Carried Unanimously 
 
 



Page 3 of 7 

2. Incorporated Towns Payment Activity Report 

An update on the incorporated town’s payment activity was provided for August. 
There were no questions or concerns. 

3. Human Resources Policy and Procedure Manual and Salary Scales Review 

The Board’s human resources policy states that the Human Resources Policy 
and Procedure Manual and salary scales would be reviewed every three years to 
ensure that the policy is compliant with current legislative requirements and to 
ensure rates of pay are competitive with market. 

 
The Finance & Audit Committee recommends review to ensure that the HR 
policy is in line with other public agencies as well as up to date with legislation 
such as new regulations pertaining to violence and harassment in the workplace, 
etc. 

 
MOTION 2020-062 
Moved By Mr. Hickman 
Seconded By Mr. Whalen 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board proceed with review of its Human Resources 
Policy and Procedure Manual and salary scales for non-union staff only. 

            Carried Unanimously 

4. Budget 2021 
 

The 2021 draft budget was included in the meeting package for members’ 
review.   

MOTION 2020-063 
Moved By Mr. Hickman 
Seconded By Ms. Stoyles 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that ERSB adopt the 2021 budget as tabled. 

Carried Unanimously 
 
 

5. Conception Bay Center Multi-Stream Waste Collection including Recycling 
 and Bulk Pick-Up Tender 
 
Members were reminded that the Board extended the current contract for this 
area to the end of November 2020 and went to tender for a new contract 
beginning December 1, 2020.   



Page 4 of 7 

 
Four companies picked up the tender documents; however, there were only two 
bids received.  The lowest bid received was from T2 Ventures Inc., in the 
amount of $697,666.82 (including HST) for 2,347 properties for the period of 40 
months. 

 
MOTION 2020-064 
Moved By Mr. Hickman 
Seconded By Mr. McDonald 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that ERSB award the tender for the Conception Bay Center 
Multi-Stream Waste Collection including Recycling and Bulk Pick-Up to T2 
Ventures Inc. for the period of 40 months beginning December 1, 2020 in the 
amount of $697,666.82, HST included. 

Carried Unanimously 
 
 

b) Strategy & Policy Committee 
 
Mr. Whalen delivered the Strategy & Policy Committee report. 

1. Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility Winter Closure 2020-2021 
 
Historically, the Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility has low winter usage and 
snow clearing costs are high.  As per past practice, it was recommended that the 
Board close this facility over the winter months. 

 
MOTION 2020-065 
Moved By Mr. Whalen 
Seconded By Mr. Collins 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that ERSB close the Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility 
over the winter months from Monday, December 14, 2020 to re-open on 
Saturday, April 3, 2021. 

Carried Unanimously 
 

2. Update on Ongoing Issue at Harbour Grace Waste Recovery Facility - 
Unrestricted Access at Selby Lane 
 
Discussion took place regarding the Harbour Grace Waste Recovery Facility and 
unrestricted access at Selby Lane.  The Board tried to resolve this matter with the 
Town in the past; however, no suitable resolution was found.  A letter has been 
sent to the Town of Harbour Grace once again requesting assistance in 
preventing illegal access and illegal dumping at the site.  A copy of the letter is 



Page 5 of 7 

included for members’ information. If a resolution cannot be found, the Board 
may consider moving the facility. 
 

3. Conditions of Use Added to the Clarenville Transfer Station Permit 
Application 

The ‘Conditions of Use’ guidelines will now become a part of the permit 
application so that customers will acknowledge the rules and regulations for use 
of the site upon submission of the permit application.   
 

4. Update on School Recycling Program 

The Newfoundland and Labrador English School District has asked that ERSB 
continue to provide recycling services to the schools that are already enrolled in 
the program for the 2020-2021 school year.  It was confirmed that most schools 
in the Eastern region now have access to paper recycling which corresponds 
with the program offered to schools in the greater St. John’s area. 
  
The school board’s waste contract will be re-tendered in 2021 and will include a 
recycling program for all schools. 
 

5.  Update on Website Re-Design 

Members were notified that the Board’s newly re-designed website was 
launched today.  Members were invited to take a few moments to become 
familiar with the new website and to pass along any comments and/or concerns 
to the CAO. 
 
 

c) Governance Committee 

 Mr. Clarke delivered the Governance Committee report. 

1. Payroll Remittance Statements 
 

The Board’s statement of account from the Canada Revenue Agency for the 
Board’s payroll remittances to the end of June 2020 is included in the meeting 
package.  No issues or concerns were noted. 
 

2. Changes to Provincial Government Departments 
 

For information purposes, it was noted that ERSB and municipalities now fall 
under the jurisdiction of three (3) Provincial Government departments: 

• Department of Environment, Climate Change and Municipalities 



Page 6 of 7 

• Department of Justice and Public Safety 
• Department of Transportation and Infrastructure 

 
3. Update on Collective Bargaining  

 
Members were informed that collective bargaining has not begun.   
 

5. Correspondence 

a) Letter to Premier Andrew Furey and Response Received 
b) Letter to Minister Derek Bennett and Response Received 
c) Letter to Mr. Bill Bailey upon Resignation 

 

Mr. Snook joined the meeting by telephone at 7:40 p.m. 

 

6. New Business 

a) Public In-Person Meetings during the Pandemic 
 

To ensure the Board continues to operate in accordance with measures outlined by the 
Province’s Chief Medical Officer and to ensure the Board has all the information 
required to make the best possible risk-informed decisions during the pandemic, the 
latest information available to public agencies and local governments is included for 
members’ information. 
 
It has been confirmed through research of federal and provincial guidelines, as well as 
in conversation with the Minister’s office, that all Board meetings should continue by 
video conference until further notice. 
 

7. Upcoming Meetings 
 
a) The next meeting of the Board of Directors will take place by videoconference on 

Wednesday, October 28, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

b) The next meeting of the Finance & Audit Committee will take place by 
videoconference on Thursday, October 15, 2020 at 12:30 p.m. 
 



Page 7 of 7 

c) The next meeting of the Strategy & Policy Committee will take place by 
videoconference on Tuesday, October 13, 2020 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

d) The next meeting of the Governance Committee will take place by videoconference on 
Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 10:30 a.m.   
 
 

8. Adjournment 

 
MOTION 2020-066 
Moved By Mr. Willis 
Seconded By Mr. McDonald 
 
Seeing no further business to be discussed, BE IT RESOLVED that the meeting 
adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
                   Carried Unanimously 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Holly Coles 
Board Clerk and Outreach Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mayor Harold Mullowney 
Chairperson 



Printed:  9:12:41AM 09/01/2020 Page 1 of 2

Eastern Regional Service Board

CHEQUE REGISTER

BNK2 - Bank of Montreal - EW

Number Issued SC Status Status Date

Cheques from 000001 to 009078  dated between 08-01-2020 and 08-31-2020

Amount

08/05/2020 A/P009036 08/05/2020OUT-STD 7,380.3062167 Newfoundland and Labrador Inc

08/05/2020 A/P009037 08/25/2020CLEARED 3,011.51Advantage Personnel Ltd.

08/05/2020 A/P009038 08/12/2020CLEARED 79,112.66Around The Bay Disposals Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009039 08/25/2020CLEARED 1,967.67Bell Aliant

08/05/2020 A/P009040 08/25/2020CLEARED 27.37Bell Conferencing Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009041 08/25/2020CLEARED 1,577.89Bell Mobility Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009042 08/12/2020CLEARED 94.72Dicks and Company Limited

08/05/2020 A/P009043 08/12/2020CLEARED 19,584.07Dodd's Diesel Repair Ltd.

08/05/2020 A/P009044 08/25/2020CLEARED 3,660.65Jenkins Anthony Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009045 08/12/2020CLEARED 672.67Miller IT Limited

08/05/2020 A/P009046 08/12/2020CLEARED 105.18Modern Business Equipment Limited

08/05/2020 A/P009047 08/25/2020CLEARED 171.49NL News Now

08/05/2020 A/P009048 08/12/2020CLEARED 14,117.17North Atlantic

08/05/2020 A/P009049 08/25/2020CLEARED 456.60OMB Parts & Industrial Ltd.

08/05/2020 A/P009050 08/25/2020CLEARED 1,319.28Parts For Trucks Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009051 08/25/2020CLEARED 183.26Pitney Bowes

08/05/2020 A/P009052 08/12/2020CLEARED 247,390.66T2 Ventures Inc.

08/05/2020 A/P009053 08/12/2020CLEARED 1,265.41Tulk Tire & Service Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009054 08/19/2020OUT-STD 1,564.82Bell Mobility Inc.

08/19/2020 A/P009055 08/19/2020OUT-STD 3,646.60Blaketown Service Station

08/19/2020 A/P009056 08/19/2020OUT-STD 3,992.21Christie Dean

08/19/2020 A/P009057 08/26/2020CLEARED 33,264.88City of St. John's

08/19/2020 A/P009058 08/19/2020OUT-STD 14,432.50Coish's Trucking & Excavating Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009059 08/19/2020OUT-STD 68.43D&L Russell Limited

08/19/2020 A/P009060 08/26/2020CLEARED 19,109.44Dodd's Diesel Repair Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009061 08/19/2020OUT-STD 773.38Eastern Machining & Welding Inc.

08/19/2020 A/P009062 08/25/2020CLEARED 340.23GCR Tires & Service

08/19/2020 A/P009063 08/19/2020OUT-STD 12,503.38Hi Tech Scales Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009064 08/19/2020OUT-STD 550.00Leslie Squires

08/19/2020 A/P009065 08/25/2020CLEARED 657.10Lynn Tucker

08/19/2020 A/P009066 08/19/2020OUT-STD 2,729.76Madsen Construction Equipment

08/19/2020 A/P009067 08/19/2020OUT-STD 15,200.81NATIONAL Public Relations

08/19/2020 A/P009068 08/19/2020OUT-STD 1,906.40Northern Business Intelligence

08/19/2020 A/P009069 08/19/2020OUT-STD 186.23OMB Parts & Industrial Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009070 08/19/2020OUT-STD 312.80ORKIN Canada Corporation

08/19/2020 A/P009071 08/19/2020OUT-STD 96.58Parts For Trucks Inc.

08/19/2020 A/P009072 08/19/2020OUT-STD 240.13Sam Pike Masonry Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009073 08/19/2020OUT-STD 69.53Shred-it c/o Stericycle ULC

08/19/2020 A/P009074 08/25/2020CLEARED 4,551.13Tulk Tire & Service Ltd.

08/19/2020 A/P009075 08/19/2020OUT-STD 251.85WAJAX (Power Systems)

** - Name on Check was modified



Printed:  9:12:42AM 09/01/2020 Page 2 of 2

Eastern Regional Service Board

CHEQUE REGISTER

BNK2 - Bank of Montreal - EW

Number Issued SC Status Status Date

Cheques from 000001 to 009078  dated between 08-01-2020 and 08-31-2020

Amount

 498,546.75Cheque Totals  Issued:

Void:  0.00

Total Cheques Generated:  498,546.75

Total # of Cheques Listed:  40

** - Name on Check was modified



EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 
 

 
 

PAYROLL EXPENSE 
 

AUG 2020 
 
 Payroll – Staff (2 pay periods – 27 employees)................... $108,896.54 
 Payroll – Board (18 members) ....................................... $00,000.00      
 Total Payroll (27 employees) ........................................ $108,896.54
 Payroll CRA Remittance ............................................ $32,265.36   
 TOTAL GROSS PAYROLL ........................................ $141,161.90 
 
 

 
 
 

PREVIOUS MONTH 

 
 

JULY 2020 
 
 Payroll – Staff (3 pay periods – 26 employees)................... $164,705.61 
 Payroll – Board (18 members)  ....................................... $23,289.12       
 Total Payroll (44 employees) ........................................ $187,994.73 
 Payroll CRA Remittance ........................................... $ 56,627.44
 TOTAL GROSS PAYROLL ........................................ $244,622.17 

 
 



N
um

be
r 

N
um

be
r

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r
Am

ou
nt

 
of

of
 U

ni
ts

(C
re

di
t)

To
ta

l
Pa

ym
en

ts
D

ue
 b

y
Su

rp
lu

s
Cu

st
Co

de
To

w
n/

Lo
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tr
ic

t
U

ni
ts

x 
$1

80
.0

0
Ar

re
ar

s
In

vo
ic

ed
Re

ce
iv

ed
Ba

la
nc

e
30

-A
ug

(A
rr

ea
rs

)
TO

W
N

50
3

To
w

n 
of

 A
rn

ol
d'

s C
ov

e
53

5
$9

6,
30

0.
00

$9
6,

30
0.

00
67

,4
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

9,
26

0.
00

67
,4

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
40

3
To

w
n 

of
 C

ap
e 

Br
oy

le
27

7
$4

9,
86

0.
00

$4
9,

50
0.

00
34

,6
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$9

,6
12

.0
0

34
,6

50
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

50
2

To
w

n 
of

 C
ha

nc
e 

Co
ve

14
8

$2
6,

64
0.

00
$2

6,
64

0.
00

18
,6

48
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$5
,3

28
.0

0
18

,6
48

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

51
4

To
w

n 
of

 C
ol

in
et

75
$1

3,
50

0.
00

$1
3,

50
0.

00
9,

45
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$2

,7
00

.0
0

9,
45

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

50
4

To
w

n 
of

 L
on

g 
Ha

rb
ou

r-
M

ou
nt

 A
rli

ng
to

n 
He

ig
ht

s
19

6
$3

5,
28

0.
00

$3
5,

28
0.

00
24

,6
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$7

,0
56

.0
0

24
,6

96
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
80

4
To

w
n 

of
 N

ew
 P

er
lic

an
16

2
$2

9,
16

0.
00

$2
9,

16
0.

00
20

,4
12

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$5

,8
32

.0
0

20
,4

12
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
51

7
To

w
n 

of
 S

t. 
Vi

nc
en

t's
-S

t. 
St

ep
he

n'
s-

Pe
te

r's
 R

iv
er

21
3

$3
8,

34
0.

00
$3

8,
34

0.
00

26
,8

38
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$7
,6

68
.0

0
26

,8
38

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

TO
W

N
30

5
To

w
n 

of
 S

un
ny

sid
e

20
5

$3
6,

90
0.

00
$3

6,
90

0.
00

25
,8

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$7
,3

80
.0

0
25

,8
30

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

80
9

To
w

n 
of

 W
ab

an
a

12
22

$2
19

,9
60

.0
0

$2
19

,9
60

.0
0

15
3,

97
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
$4

3,
99

2.
00

15
3,

97
2.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

50
8

To
w

n 
of

 P
oi

nt
 L

an
ce

47
$8

,4
60

.0
0

$8
,4

60
.0

0
4,

23
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$2

,1
15

.0
0

4,
23

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

51
1

To
w

n 
of

 S
t. 

Jo
se

ph
's

10
7

$1
9,

26
0.

00
$1

9,
26

0.
00

9,
63

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

$4
,8

15
.0

0
9,

63
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
LS

D0
00

02
LS

D 
of

 M
ob

ile
 (E

 D
al

le
y,

 T
re

as
ur

er
)

10
1

$1
8,

18
0.

00
$1

8,
18

0.
00

18
,1

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$0
.0

0
14

,5
44

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
63

6.
00

TO
W

N
00

03
To

w
n 

of
 C

la
rk

e'
s B

ea
ch

59
2

$1
06

,5
60

.0
0

$1
06

,5
60

.0
0

10
6,

56
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
$0

.0
0

85
,2

48
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,3
12

.0
0

TO
W

N
30

1
To

w
n 

of
 C

om
e 

by
 C

ha
nc

e
11

8
$2

1,
24

0.
00

$2
1,

24
0.

00
21

,2
40

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$0

.0
0

16
,9

92
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

24
8.

00
TO

W
N

30
2

To
w

n 
of

 N
or

m
an

's 
Co

ve
-L

on
g 

Co
ve

33
3

$5
9,

94
0.

00
$5

9,
94

0.
00

41
,9

58
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$1
7,

98
2.

00
47

,9
52

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-5
,9

94
.0

0
TO

W
N

30
3

To
w

n 
of

 C
ha

pe
l A

rm
25

6
$4

5,
90

0.
00

$4
5,

90
0.

00
37

,0
08

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$8

,8
92

.0
0

36
,7

20
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

8.
00

TO
W

N
30

4
To

w
n 

of
 S

ou
th

er
n 

Ha
rb

ou
r

18
4

$3
3,

12
0.

00
$3

3,
12

0.
00

29
,8

08
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$3
,3

12
.0

0
26

,4
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
31

2.
00

TO
W

N
O

40
1

To
w

n 
of

 A
qu

af
or

te
70

$1
2,

60
0.

00
87

5.
73

$ 
   

   
   

$1
3,

47
5.

73
12

,5
88

.3
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
$8

87
.3

7
10

,7
80

.5
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

7.
78

TO
W

N
O

40
2

To
w

n 
of

 B
ay

 B
ul

ls
54

5
$9

8,
10

0.
00

$9
8,

10
0.

00
78

,4
80

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

9,
62

0.
00

78
,4

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
40

4
To

w
n 

of
 F

er
m

eu
se

-K
in

gm
an

's 
Co

ve
17

9
$3

2,
22

0.
00

(0
.0

2)
$ 

   
   

   
   

$3
2,

21
9.

98
24

,1
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$8

,0
54

.9
8

25
,7

75
.9

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

,6
10

.9
8

TO
W

N
O

40
5

To
w

n 
of

 F
er

ry
la

nd
27

2
$4

8,
96

0.
00

$4
8,

96
0.

00
48

,9
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$0

.0
0

39
,1

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

79
2.

00
TO

W
N

O
40

7
To

w
n 

of
 R

en
ew

s-
Ca

pp
ah

ay
de

n
23

4
$4

2,
12

0.
00

$4
2,

12
0.

00
33

,6
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$8

,4
24

.0
0

33
,6

96
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
40

8
To

w
n 

of
 S

t. 
Sh

ot
t's

50
$9

,0
00

.0
0

$9
,0

00
.0

0
6,

75
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$2

,2
50

.0
0

7,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
50

.0
0

TO
W

N
O

41
0

To
w

n 
of

 W
itl

es
s B

ay
68

5
$1

23
,3

00
.0

0
$1

23
,3

00
.0

0
92

,4
75

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$3

0,
82

5.
00

98
,6

40
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-6

,1
65

.0
0

TO
W

N
O

41
1

To
w

n 
of

 P
or

tu
ga

l C
ov

e 
So

ut
h

92
$1

6,
56

0.
00

$1
6,

56
0.

00
12

,4
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$4

,1
40

.0
0

13
,2

48
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-8

28
.0

0
TO

W
N

O
50

5
To

w
n 

of
 F

ox
 H

ar
bo

ur
13

4
$2

4,
12

0.
00

$2
4,

12
0.

00
19

,2
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$4

,8
24

.0
0

19
,2

96
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
50

7
To

w
n 

of
 S

t. 
Br

id
e'

s
14

0
$2

5,
20

0.
00

$2
5,

20
0.

00
25

,2
36

.1
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-$

36
.1

1
20

,1
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
07

6.
11

TO
W

N
O

50
9

To
w

n 
of

 B
ra

nc
h

16
1

$2
8,

98
0.

00
$2

8,
98

0.
00

28
,9

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$0
.0

0
23

,1
84

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
79

6.
00

TO
W

N
O

51
0

To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 C

ar
m

el
-M

itc
he

ll'
s B

ro
ok

-S
t. 

Ca
th

er
in

e'
s

29
9

$5
3,

82
0.

00
$5

3,
82

0.
00

40
,3

65
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$1
3,

45
5.

00
43

,0
56

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
,6

91
.0

0
TO

W
N

O
51

2
To

w
n 

of
 A

dm
ira

l's
 B

ea
ch

82
$1

4,
76

0.
00

$1
4,

76
0.

00
11

,8
08

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$2

,9
52

.0
0

11
,8

08
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
51

3
To

w
n 

of
 G

as
ki

er
s-

Po
in

t L
aH

ay
e

14
4

$2
5,

92
0.

00
$2

5,
92

0.
00

20
,7

36
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$5
,1

84
.0

0
20

,7
36

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

51
5

To
w

n 
of

 R
iv

er
he

ad
11

6
$2

0,
88

0.
00

$2
0,

88
0.

00
19

,1
57

.4
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

,7
22

.5
7

16
,7

04
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

45
3.

43
TO

W
N

O
51

6
To

w
n 

of
 S

t. 
M

ar
y'

s
22

2
$3

9,
96

0.
00

$3
9,

96
0.

00
31

,9
68

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$7

,9
92

.0
0

31
,9

68
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
60

1
To

w
n 

of
 W

hi
te

w
ay

16
3

$2
9,

34
0.

00
$2

9,
34

0.
00

25
,2

32
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$4
,1

08
.0

0
23

,4
72

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
76

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

60
2

To
w

n 
of

 H
ea

rt
's 

De
lig

ht
-Is

lin
gt

on
40

9
$7

3,
62

0.
00

$7
3,

62
0.

00
58

,8
96

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

4,
72

4.
00

58
,8

96
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
TO

W
N

O
60

3
To

w
n 

of
 H

ea
rt

's 
De

sir
e

12
5

$2
2,

50
0.

00
$2

2,
50

0.
00

18
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$4
,5

00
.0

0
18

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

TO
W

N
O

80
1

To
w

n 
of

 O
ld

 P
er

lic
an

33
0

$1
4,

64
5.

40
$1

4,
64

5.
40

11
,6

28
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$3
,0

17
.4

0
11

,7
16

.3
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-8
8.

32
TO

W
N

O
80

2
To

w
n 

of
 B

ay
 d

e 
Ve

rd
e

22
1

$3
9,

78
0.

00
7,

95
6.

00
$ 

   
   

$4
7,

73
6.

00
35

,8
02

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

1,
93

4.
00

38
,1

88
.8

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

,3
86

.8
0

TO
W

N
O

80
5

To
w

n 
of

 H
an

t's
 H

ar
bo

ur
19

3
$3

4,
74

0.
00

$3
4,

74
0.

00
23

,1
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
$1

1,
58

0.
00

27
,7

92
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-4

,6
32

.0
0

TO
W

N
O

80
6

To
w

n 
of

 H
ea

rt
's 

Co
nt

en
t

23
9

$4
3,

02
0.

00
$4

3,
02

0.
00

21
,5

10
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$2
1,

51
0.

00
32

,2
65

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
0,

75
5.

00
TO

W
N

O
80

7
To

w
n 

of
 W

in
te

rt
on

29
5

$5
3,

10
0.

00
$5

3,
10

0.
00

39
,8

25
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

$1
3,

27
5.

00
42

,4
80

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
,6

55
.0

0
10

17
1

1,
78

5,
84

5.
40

8,
83

1.
71

1,
79

4,
31

7.
11

1,
39

1,
65

3.
90

34
0,

88
7.

21
1,

37
0,

42
8.

69
21

,2
25

.2
1

TO
W

N
S 

PA
YM

EN
T 

AC
TI

VI
TY

 2
02

0 
-  

As
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 9

, 2
02

0
(T

ow
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

al
l i

nc
or

po
ra

te
d 

to
w

ns
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

LS
Ds

 w
ho

 p
ay

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
el

y)



N
o.

 
Pr

io
r Y

ea
r

To
ta

l
Pa

ym
en

ts
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
Su

rp
lu

s
Cu

st
Co

de
To

w
n/

LS
D

Pr
op

er
tie

s
Ba

la
nc

e
In

vo
ic

es
 2

02
0

Re
ce

iv
ed

Ba
la

nc
e

(A
rr

ea
rs

)
LS

DO
F2

01
LS

D 
of

 G
eo

rg
et

ow
n

13
5

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
56

.8
7

   
   

   
   

11
,8

55
.6

9
   

   
   

   
  

1,
57

1.
50

   
   

   
  

(1
,5

71
.5

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
LS

DO
F2

02
LS

D 
of

 M
ar

ys
va

le
22

5
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
,3

00
.0

9
   

   
   

   
18

,8
13

.1
8

   
   

   
   

  
2,

84
4.

64
   

   
   

  
(2

,8
44

.6
4)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
00

01
To

w
n 

of
 C

ar
bo

ne
ar

21
50

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

6,
90

3.
79

   
   

   
 

28
6,

96
5.

09
   

   
   

   
9,

93
8.

70
   

   
   

  
(9

,9
38

.7
0)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TO
W

N
O

20
3

To
w

n 
of

 C
ol

lie
rs

28
5

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

,0
92

.4
7

   
   

   
   

21
,2

18
.8

0
   

   
   

   
  

7,
37

9.
49

   
   

   
  

(7
,3

79
.4

9)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
TO

W
N

O
20

5
To

w
n 

of
 H

ol
yr

oo
d

10
35

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

4,
04

4.
78

   
   

   
 

89
,4

08
.1

5
   

   
   

   
  

11
,7

95
.5

4
   

   
   

(1
1,

79
5.

54
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

30
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
2,

39
8.

00
   

   
 

42
8,

26
0.

91
   

   
   

33
,5

29
.8

7
   

   
 

(3
3,

52
9.

87
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
20

TO
TA

L 
AR

RE
AR

S 
- I

N
CO

RP
O

RA
TE

D 
TO

W
N

S
(1

2,
30

4.
66

)
$ 

   
 

PA
D

*
Se

t u
p 

fo
r p

re
-a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 d
eb

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
SP

AR
**

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ay
m

en
t A

rr
an

ge
m

en
t i

n 
Pl

ac
e

TO
W

N
S 

AC
TI

VI
TY

 - 
IN

VO
IC

ED
 M

O
N

TH
LY

  (
Ja

n 
- D

ec
  2

02
0)



 

1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

Human Resources Policy and Pay Scale Review 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-17 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
• Staff are recommending a review of the Board’s Human Resources Policy and 

Procedure Manual to ensure that it is in line with other public agencies as well as 
compliant with current legislative requirements, i.e. Occupational Health and Safety 
Regulations pertaining to violence and harassment in the workplace, etc. 

• Staff are recommending a review of the Board’s pay scales as per Section 4.8 of the 
HR policy that states, “Salary scales and rates of pay will be reviewed every three 
years to be competitive with market.”   

 
 
MOTION: 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board proceed w ith a review  of its Human 
Resources Policy and Procedure Manual including salary scales. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
• The Board adopted its current human resources policy document in 2012 and 

adopted amendments to the document in 2016 and 2017. 
• The salary scales were last reviewed in 2016 and were scheduled for another review 

in 2019. 
• However, in 2019 because of the Ministerial Directives, Provincial Waste 

Management Strategy Review, union certification, etc., the review was never begun. 
• The 2019 union certification of outside staff resulted in a statutory freeze that 

prohibits changes in HR policy and salary scales until a collective agreement has 
been reached. 

• No collective agreement has been reached and there has been no contact with the 
union since early 2020. 

• Staff are now requesting the review be completed. 



 

2 
 

• The Board currently employs 18 full-time employees plus 10 part-time employees. 
• By the end of 2020, 3 non-unionized employees out of the 18 full-time employees 

will be at the top of their pay scale. 
• The CAO has confirmed with the Board’s legal counsel for HR issues and collective 

bargaining that: 
o This is an extraordinary situation where the union certified in May 2019 and 

has not begun collective bargaining yet. 
o Therefore, the HR review could be performed without breaching the statutory 

freeze by reviewing the current HR policy document as well as pay scales for 
the non-union staff only.   

o Any recommended changes would not affect the collective bargaining unit as 
they await their own agreement under the collective bargaining process. 

• Staff are recommending issuing a Request for Quotes to perform a review of the 
Board’s Human Resources Policy and Procedures Manual and adopted salary scales. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 



1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

ERSB Budget 2021 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-17 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Craig Drover, Manager Corporate Services 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
It is recommended that Eastern Regional Service Board adopt the 2021 Budget as 
tabled. 
 
 
MOTION: 
BE IT RESOLVED that the ERSB Finance Committee recommend that the Board adopt 
the 2021 Budget as tabled.  
 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

• Staff salary costs – an economic increase of 1.70% has been included.  
• Staff salary costs – all approved positions are treated as filled. 
• Staff salary costs – Regional Waste Operations salaries have increased to 

accommodate an additional labourer position for the Clarenville WRF.   
• Regional Waste Operations remuneration may be impacted as the Board enters 

into collective bargaining. There is no scheduled time frame at this time. 
• Benefits costs have decreased due to a reduction in Workplace NL assessments 

and a decrease in the cost of the health and life benefits program. 
• Transportation and Communications – the costs for telephone communications 

has decreased due to current year’s actual experience. The Board Travel and 
Staff Travel budget lines have been reduced due to Covid-19. 

• Supplies – Slight change in insurance to reflect historic cost. 
• Purchased Services Administrative – Increase in professional services due to 

additional legal costs for the collective bargaining process. An increase in 
Communications has been budgeted in relation to the new website and the 
rebranding of signs and promotional material. 



2 
 

• Property, Furnishings & Equipment – increase due to additional fees associated 
with computer software licensing and training. 

• Regional Operations & Waste Recovery Facilities – WRF Snow Clearing increased 
to reflect expected increase in costs.  Site Maintenance increased to reflect the 
need to complete work at the Placentia WRF. WRF Compaction Trailer Lease 
Payments ceased in 2019, new rolling stock was ordered and not leased.  
Whitbourne Depot Utilities increased to reflect historic costs from NL Power. 

• Regional Transfer Station Clarenville – Increased as the amount budgeted for 
Utilities, and Site Maintenance as per actual expenses in current year. 

• Household Hazardous Waste Program – No Change 
• Curbside Waste Collection Program – Slight change to reflect potential increase 

in contracts going to tender. 
• Water/Wastewater Program – Provincial government provided funding only 

through March 31, 2021. 
• Fire Protection – Substantial increase due to the agreements with four towns to 

collect fire fees on their behalf.   
• Reserves – $200K included for reserves.   
• Capital ERSB – Landfill closures - $650,000 is budgeted for the closure and 

remediation of the Bell Island landfill which is approved by the Province.  Two 
grapple trucks were included in the 2020 budget but will not be substantially 
completed until 2021 so the funds allocated in the 2020 budget will have to be 
deferred until 2021.  In addition to the grapple trucks, funds have been allocated 
to begin replacing the Board’s pick-up trucks used in Clarenville and Whitbourne. 

• Revenue is projected to increase slightly overall for 2021 based on YTD 
experience with increases in the expected HST Rebate due to the capital 
expenditures and the increase in Provincial Capital related to the Bell Island 
WRF.  The Regional Landfill Tipping revenue will remain the same. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Final DRAFT Budget 2020  
 
 



2021 Proposed 2020 Budget % Budget Change

EXPENDITURES

Salaries

Chair/Board Member Remuneration 100,000$                     100,000$                     0.0%

Salaries (Corporate Administration) 574,582$                     559,134$                     2.8%

Salaries (Regional Waste Operations) 968,095$                     895,881$                     8.1%

Salaries (Water) 13,825$                       55,075$                       -74.9%

Sub-total 1,656,502$                  1,610,090$                  2.9%

Benefits

Employment Insurance 26,277$                       26,309$                       -0.1%

CPP 61,972$                       61,938$                       0.1%

WHSCC 50,000$                       80,000$                       -37.5%

Health & Life Benefits 29,705$                       22,925$                       29.6%

RRSP 94,746$                       93,095$                       1.8%

Sub-total 262,699$                     284,267$                     -7.6%

Transportation & Communications
Board/Committee Local Travel & Meetings (mileage & expenses) 30,000$                       45,000$                       -33.3%

Telephone 30,000$                       30,000$                       0.0%

Staff Local Travel (mileage & expenses) 10,000$                       10,000$                       0.0%

Professional Development (Board) 30,000$                       35,000$                       -14.3%

Sub-total 100,000$                     120,000$                     -16.7%

Supplies

Insurance 145,000$                     135,000$                     7.4%

Office Expenses 80,000$                       80,000$                       0.0%

Bank Charges 40,000$                       40,000$                       0.0%

Sub-total 265,000$                     255,000$                     3.9%

Purchased and Professonal Services

Audit 34,320$                       31,200$                       10.0%

Professional Development Staff 33,000$                       33,000$                       0.0%

Communications 160,000$                     120,000$                     33.3%

Professional Services-Legal,HR,IT,Engineering,etc. 180,000$                     120,000$                     50.0%

Sub-total 407,320$                     184,200$                     121.1%

Property, Furnishings & Equipment

Office Space (gross lease, Majors Path) 86,000$                       86,000$                       0.0%

Computer Software/Software Licensing 24,000$                       12,000$                       100.0%

Photocopier Fees 4,000$                         4,000$                         0.0%

Furniture & Equipment 25,000$                       25,000$                       0.0%

Sub-total 139,000$                     127,000$                     9.4%

2021 DRAFT BUDGET

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD

1



2021 Proposed 2020 Budget % Budget Change

Regional Operations & Waste Recovery Facilities

Snow Clearing - All WRF 71,500$                       65,000$                       10.0%

Site Maintenance - All WRF 100,000$                     50,000$                       100.0%

Old Perlican WRF (TCNWM) 190,000$                     175,000$                     8.6%

WRF Compaction Trailer Lease Payments -$                            170,000$                     -100.0%

Vehicle Maintenance and Operations 380,000$                     380,000$                     0.0%

Whitbourne Depot Utilities and Phones 70,000$                       25,000$                       180.0%

Sub-total 811,500$                     865,000$                     -6.2%

CLARENVILLE REGIONAL TRANSFER STATION

Utilities/phone 45,000$                       25,000$                       80.0%

Site Maintenance 64,086$                       35,000$                       83.1%

Vehicle Maintenance and Operations 219,143$                     219,143$                     0.0%

Tipping Fees At Regional Landfill for CTS 400,000$                     400,000$                     0.0%

Sub-total 728,229$                     679,143$                     7.2%

HOUSEHOLD HAZDORDOUS WASTE PROGRAM

HHW Collection Contract and Fire Dept 80,000$                       80,000$                       0.0%

Sub-total 80,000$                       80,000$                       0.0%

CURBSIDE WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM

Maintenance Depot Costs Allocated to Curbside 30,000$                       30,000$                       0.0%

Contracted Services 4,100,000$                  4,000,000$                  2.5%

Sub-Total 4,130,000$                  4,030,000$                  2.5%

WATER/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PROGRAM

Sub-Total 25,000$                       25,000$                       0.0%

FIRE PROTECTION
Sub-Total 75,000$                       18,500$                       305.4%

TRANSFERS TO RESERVE

Regional Capital Reserve 200,000$                     200,000$                     

Curbside Capital Reserve -$                            -$                            

Operational Reserve -$                            -$                            

Sub-Total 200,000$                     200,000$                     0.0%

2



2021 Proposed 2020 Budget % Budget Change

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,880,250$                  8,598,200$                  3.2%

ERSB CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

WRF Development 650,000$                     300,000$                     116.7%

Regional Equipment 150,000$                     1,500,000$                  -90.0%

Sub-Total 800,000$                     1,800,000$                  -55.6%

TOTAL OPERATING AND CAPITAL 9,680,250$                  8,969,200$                  7.9%

REVENUE

Waste Collection Fees 4,590,000$                  4,590,000$                  0.0%

Provision for Bad Debt (90,000)$                      (90,000)$                      0.0%

Clarenville Transfer Station Tipping Fees/Permit Fees/Etc. 190,000$                     190,000$                     0.0%

Transportation Charges - Clarenville Transfer Station 60,000$                       60,000$                       0.0%

Fire Protection Services Fees 70,000$                       19,200$                       264.6%

Recyclable Metals and Electronics 112,500$                     75,000$                       50.0%

Interest 60,000$                       60,000$                       0.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 35,000$                       35,000$                       0.0%

Regional Landfill Tipping Fee Derived 3,300,000$                  3,300,000$                  0.0%

HST Rebate 627,750$                     350,000$                     79.4%

Provincial Capital 700,000$                     300,000$                     133.3%

Reserve Funding -$                            -$                            0.0%

Water / Wastewater Program 25,000$                       80,000$                       -68.8%

TOTAL REVENUE 9,680,250$                  8,969,200$                  7.9%

3



 

1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

Conception Bay Center Multi-Stream Waste Collection Including 
Recycling and Bulk Pick-up Tender Award 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-17 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Christie Dean, Manager Operations 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
It is recommended that the Board proceed to award the tender for Conception Bay Center 
Multi-Stream Waste Collection Including Recycling and Bulk Pick-up beginning December 
1, 2020 for 40 months to T2 Ventures Inc. for $697,666.82 (HST included).  
 
 
MOTION: 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Finance and Audit Committee recommend that 
ERSB award the tender for the Conception Bay Center Multi-Stream Waste 
Collection including Recycling and Bulk Pick-up to T2 Ventures Inc. for the 
period of 40 months beginning December 1, 2020 in the amount of 
$697,666.82, HST included. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Attached are the results of the Conception Bay Center Multi-Stream Waste Collection 
tender results.  A total of four (4) companies picked up the tender documents, however, 
there were only two (2) bids received. The lowest bid was received from T2 Ventures 
Inc., in the amount of $697,666.82 including HST for 2,347 properties for the duration of 
40 months. 
 
This area has been tendered three (3) times; in 2014 the annual per unit cost was 
$112.83, plus HST; in 2017 the annual per unit cost was $75.54 plus HST; and now in 
2020 the per unit cost is $77.55 plus HST.  
 
Staff contacted T2 Ventures Ltd. as the bid cost seemed low given previous 
communication from the contractor. The contractor has confirmed that the bid price is 



 

2 
 

correct and will cover expenses. The lowest tendered price represents a 3% increase in 
costs. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Conception Bay Center Multi-Stream Waste Collection including recycling and bulk pick-up 
Tender Results 



=

l

n.

=

m

£

Q.
=

l

Q.

=

m

C

£

>.
aJ
E
C
'u
3

£
C
0
B
a
0

B
E

a

l

3
E
a)

£0
>.
m
£0

0
£
0

0
>
Q.
a.
D

£

aJ
E
£

=

C

C
Q

6
aJ

0

0

B
E

a)

l

=

E
0
C
a)

0
m
Q

>
Q

e
0

©
E
C
Q

EI

00

0
0

QI
.Q
EI
0

©
(/)

'u

m
C
0

0
C
0

£
0

Q.

a)
Q

a)

C
a)
h-

0
E
}-
''0
C

0

Q

C

0

a)

E
3
Z
B
aJ

F
Q.

          
F-

= gg     

          

a
E
N
Z

         



 

1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility Winter Closure 
2020-2021 & Consideration for Permanent Closure 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-15 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Christie Dean, Manager Operations 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
As per past practice, it is again recommended that the ERSB close the Sunnyside Waste 
Recovery Facility over the winter months. The date of closure would be Monday, 
December 14, 2020 to re-opening on Saturday, April 3, 2021. Closure would be 
communicated by site signage, a letter being sent to the potentially impacted 
communities, as well as ads in the local newspapers. 

 
MOTION: 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Strategy & Policy Committee recommend that ERSB 
close the Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility over the w inter months from 
Monday, December 14, 2020 to reopen on Saturday, April 3, 2021. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Historically, the Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility (WRF) has very low winter usage. 
Before the opening of the Clarenville Transfer Station, the Sunnyside WRF would see 
about 60 to 74 visits per month for the months of January, February and March.  

Since the opening of the Clarenville Transfer Station, the annual usage at the Sunnyside 
WRF has continued to drop. The most significant drops were observed in the winter 
months of January through March.   

In 2019 the average number of visits for January through March was 36 visits per 
month. This equates to an average of one (1) visit every two (2) hours.  

The significant reduction in usage is likely due to the availability of the Clarenville 
Transfer Station to the public. 



 

2 
 

The Clarenville Transfer Station and the Whitbourne Waste Recovery Facility is now 
operational and in close proximity for the public that historically used the Sunnyside 
facility.  
 
Another very important consideration for the Sunnyside WRF is the high cost of snow 
clearing at the facility. For the winter of 2018-2019, the Sunnyside WRF snow clearing 
contract was the highest snow clearing contract awarded. The high cost of snow 
clearing and very low public usage resulted in a snow clearing cost of $80.11 per client 
visit. This is not sustainable or fiscally responsible. 

 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS: 

The Board may want to consider permanent closure of the Sunnyside Waste 
Recovery Facility as the public in the area has access to either the Clarenville 
Transfer Station and/or the Whitbourne Waste Recovery Facility.  

When the Board determined where to locate its waste recovery facilities it was decided 
that the public should not have to drive more than 70 to 100 km to dispose of their bulk 
type materials. The decision to locate a waste recovery facility at Sunnyside was made 
before the opening of the Clarenville Transfer Station or the Whitbourne Waste 
Recovery Facility.  

The Towns of Come-by-Chance and Sunnyside are located approximately 25 kilometers 
from the Clarenville Transfer Station; therefore, they are well within the travel distance 
deemed acceptable. In addition, residents in the areas between Whitbourne and 
Clarenville are within acceptable travel distances.  

The continuation of operations at Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility is not fiscally 
responsible as:  

• The cost to staff the site equates to $35.00 per customer visit;  

• The cost of snow clearing equates to an additional $80.11 (plus HST) per customer 
visit during the winter months;  

• These costs do NOT include the cost to maintain the road to the facility; the cost to 
maintain the waste recovery site; the cost to remove waste from the facility; etc.  

 



 

1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

Restricting Access at Harbour Grace Waste Recovery 
Facility 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-15 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Craig Drover, Manager Corporate Services 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Christie Dean, Manager Operations 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
• It is recommended that the Board coordinate with the Department of Transportation 

& Works and the Department of Environment, Climate Change and Municipalities to 
determine a permanent solution to restrict access to the Harbour Grace WRF with 
the Town of Harbour Grace, as per the Certificate of Approval for the site. 

• In absence of a permanent solution with the Town to restrict access, it is 
recommended that the Board examine the issue for possible future action that could 
include moving the facility. 

 
MOTION: 
No motion required. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
• There has been prolonged significant increase to the amount of illegal dumping and 

illegal access at the Harbour Grace Waste Recovery Facility (WRF).   
• While a solution has been developed in conjunction with Environmental Protection 

Officers and adjacent property owners that has seen success for Incinerator Road, 
illegal dumping at the Shelby’s Road side of the WRF has increased.   

• Illegal dumping in the Shelby’s Road area continues since the Town of Harbour 
Grace prevents ERSB from securing that portion of the site.   

• The Town has advised ERSB that the road cannot be blocked and thus there is no 
way to prevent illegal access to the site.   

• Illegal dumping in this area includes materials placed inappropriately in the provided 
bins/berms or inappropriate material left at the WRF. 

• Illegal dumping at this location presents numerous issues for ERSB including; 



 

2 
 

o ERSB cannot control the type of material being dumped i.e. HHW materials, 
liquid waste, biomedical waste; etc. 

o ERSB has to ensure that all materials removed from the WRF is appropriately 
disposed of even when the material is not of the kind acceptable at the 
facility.  This drives up costs for our Board. 

o Having inappropriate materials at the site or materials indiscriminately 
dumped everywhere at the location negatively impacts the experience of 
compliant clients using the site.  They note that it makes the Harbour Grace 
facility “look like a dump”. 

o Additional payroll costs for ERSB as staff must be removed from their regular 
job to complete cleanups at the site following illegal dumping, perimeter 
cleanups of windblown materials, preparing tires and electronics for removal 
to the regional facility. 

o Addressing illegal dumping is not part of ERSB’s mandate. 
o As of January 2020 ERSB employs only one (1) Labourer and addressing 

illegal dumping issues at this site is most often not a one-person job. 
o ERSB does not have the heavy equipment required to address illegal dumping 

at these sites. 
• During site selection and development, the road was an ATV path and staff were 

told it was wood path.  
• In 2016 the road remained little more than an ATV path.  
• In Spring of 2018, as the Town started to develop the road further, the ERSB 

underwent significant expense to secure the site using jersey barriers and chains.  
• Now in 2020 road improvements by the Town continue resulting in the site being 

increasingly less secure.  
• Staff feel they can no longer maintain the parameters identified in the Certificate of 

Approval for the site. Namely, site security meant to ensure prohibited items such as 
HHW and food waste, etc., are diverted from the site and to ensure the safety of 
operators on duty while site may be accessed.  

• On Monday May 11th, 2015 there was a fire at the WRF that was a result from illegal 
access to the site and scavenging of materials. In addition, commercial operators 
and non-commercial residents have full access anytime of the day.  

• This impacts the segregation of material which is another requirement of the 
Certificate of Approval.  

• The Environmental Protection Officer for the area is aware of ERSB’s ongoing issues 
and suggested working with the Town. However, despite repeated efforts to 
communicate with the Town, road improvements continue and the job of 
maintaining the site becomes more difficult to impossible.  

• The Town significantly improved the road in August 2020 as per the attached 
picture.   

 

 

  



 

3 
 

Picture 1 – Illegal Dumping August 2020 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

Picture 2 - Shelby’s Road During Site Development 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 
 

Picture 3 - Shelby’s Road August 2020 

 

 



EASTERN REGIONAL
-..''' SERVICE BOARD

FIRE iSBLID WASTE iWATER IWASTE WATER

September 18, 2020

Mayor Don Coombs
Town of Harbour Grace
P.0. Box 310
Harbour Gra ce, NL AOA 2M0

Dear Mayor Coombs, Councillors and Staff;

The Eastern RegionalService Board would like to once again draw your attention to the ongoing issues
at the Harbour Grace Waste Recovery Facility(WRF). It is hoped that the ERSB can work with the Town

to determine a permanent solution to the prolonged and significant increase to the amount of illegal
dumping and illegalaccess at the site. Through consultation and cooperation with Environmental

Protection Officers and adjacent property owners, a solution was developed that has been very
successful for curbing the illegaldumping at Incinerator Road access point to the site. Unfortunately,
illegaldumping at the Selby's Road side of the WRF has increased. lllegaldumping in this area includes
materials placed inappropriately in and around the provided bins/berms or inappropriate materialleft at
thp \A/ R F=

lllegaldumping at the Harbour Grace WRF presents numerous issues for ERSB including;

o ERSB cannot control the type of material being dumped i.e. HHW materials, liquid waste,
biomedical waste; etc.

o ERSB has to ensure that all materials removed from the WRF are appropriately disposed of even

when the materialis not acceptable at the facility.

o Having inappropriate materials at the site or materials indiscriminately dumped at the location

negatively impacts the experience of compliant clients using the site.

o Additional payroll costs for ERSB as staff must be removed from their regularjob to complete

cleanups at the site following illegaldumping, perimeter cleanups of windblown materials, preparing
tires and electronics for removalto the regionalfacility.

255 Majors Path I Suite3 I St.John's I NL I AIAOL5
Tel: 709.579.7960 I Fax: 709.579.5392 I Email: info@ersbnl.ca I ersbnl.ca



During originalsite selection and development, the portion of Selby's Road was an ATV path and ERSB
representatives were advised that it was wood path. In Spring of 2018, as the Town started to develop
the road further, the ERSB underwent significant expense to secure the site using jersey barriers and
chains. Now in 2020 road improvements by the Town continue resulting in the site being increasingly

less secure. Staff feelthey can no longer maintain the parameters identified in the Certificate of
Approvalfor the site. Namely, site security meant to ensure prohibited items such as HHW and food
waste, etc., are diverted from the site and to ensure the safety of operators on duty while site may be
accessed

In closing, please be assured that the ERSB continually works to a maintain a high level of service
excellence to our customers, our communities and our people. We have worked closely with property

owners, the RCMP and government representatives to successfully resolve issues at the Harbour Grace
WRF in the past and we look forward to working together again to come to a mutually beneficial
resolution to the current challenges.

If Councilwould like to have a discussion related to these continued issues, please provide us with a few

dates and times that would be convenient for your Councilso that we can schedule the meeting with

ERSB representatives.

Sincerely yours,

Harold Mullowney, B.Sc., B.Ed., M.P.H

Chairperson



 

1 
 

EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD 

BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT 
 
TITLE: 
 

‘Conditions of Use’ Guidelines Added to Clarenville 
Transfer Station (CTS) Permit Application 

MEETING DATE: 
 

2020-09-15 

TO:  
 

 
Board / Finance & Audit / Strategy & Policy / Governance 

PREPARED BY: 
 

 
Christie Dean, Manager Operations 

REVIEWED BY: 
  

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

APPROVED BY: 
 

 
Lynn Tucker, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends adding a Conditions of Use to the current CTS permit application for 
customers to acknowledge the rules and regulations in place for use of the site with 
their signature of consent. 
 
MOTION: 
No motion required. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff has developed Conditions of Use guidelines that will become part of the permit 
application for commercial users at CTS.  Going forward, commercial users will be 
required to acknowledge and sign the documents, confirming that they understand that 
any infractions may result in the revocation of their permit(s).   
 
 
Commercial users must follow the guidelines below to maintain a permit at 
the Clarenville Transfer Station: 

• Permit application and renewal forms may be found at: 
http://easternregionalserviceboard.com/ersb-uploads/waste_disposal_permit_application_Revised.pdf 

• By applying for this permit, the applicant is agreeing to all parameters of usage 
for the CTS and understands that not following these guidelines may result in the 
revocation of the permit(s). 

• Permit processing may take one (1) business day. 
• The CTS Permit must be affixed to the vehicle for which the permit application is 

filled out; permits are non-transferable. 
• Permits expire on an annual basis and the permit holder is responsible to track 

expiry dates/renewals. 

http://easternregionalserviceboard.com/ersb-uploads/waste_disposal_permit_application_Revised.pdf


 

2 
 

• Only permit holders whose account is in good standing will be granted access.  
• Third party billing will not be accepted. 
• Facility accepts waste from the area defined by East of the Discovery Highway 

and West of the intersection of Highway 1 and Highway 204. Waste originating 
from outside this area is not accepted. 

• Facility is open to commercial users from Monday to Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 
p.m.  All vehicles are expected to be off site by 4:00 p.m.   

• Facility gates close at 3:45 p.m. and no vehicle(s) will be permitted access after 
that time. 

• Vehicle(s) must come to a complete stop on the scale before entering the site. 
• Drivers must identify waste material(s) in the load and the site attendant will 

confirm that the material(s) onboard is acceptable (see list below) before 
entering the site. 

• Vehicle(s) may be required to weigh out. 
• Vehicles(s) bringing mixed loads of different tipping fees may be weighed several 

times and load separation will be verified. 
• Drivers’ must follow the Highway Traffic Act, including but not exclusive to:  

o Loads must be secured and covered when the vehicle reaches the site; 
and, 

o Vehicle(s), trailer(s), etc., must have a valid Motor Vehicle Registration. 
• Anyone exiting the vehicle(s) during offloading must wear a safety vest, safety 

boots, safety glasses and hard hat.  Proper Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
is required at all times. 

• The Site Attendant will provide direction as to where material(s) must be placed. 
• Vandalism will not be tolerated. 
• ERSB requires a respectful workplace.  Any harassment that is deemed in 

contravention of the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Regulations will not 
be tolerated. 

• For clarification of the information provided in this document or if there are 
questions regarding the usage of the CTS facility, permit holders must follow the 
direction of the Site Attendant or contact the ERSB office at (709) 579-7960 or 
by email at info@ersbnl.ca. 
 
 

Accepted material(s): 

• Municipal solid waste; 
• Properly separated and bagged recyclable materials; and, 
• Construction/demolition material that is not listed below under unacceptable 

items. 
 

Unacceptable material(s): 

• Concrete, earthen material, bricks 

mailto:info@ersbnl.ca


 

3 
 

• Liquids 
• Nets, fishing lines, fishing ropes 
• Special waste, such as animal carcasses 
• Unsorted recyclables 
• Items not accepted at Robin Hood Bay (RHB) 
• Asbestos 
• Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) 
• Off-The-Road Tires (OTR – diameter of 24.5”+) 
• Tires acceptable to the MMSB used tire program 
• Beverage containers 
• Electronic goods, as accepted by the EPRA program 
• Biomedical Waste 
• Specific Risk material 
• Fuel storage tanks that cannot be visibly confirmed as empty 
• Naturally Occurring Radioactive (NORS) 
• Radio Active material 
• Loads on fire or smoldering 
• Loads that cannot be sorted onsite as require by the site attendant 
• Individual items that weigh more than 45lbs will not be offloaded in the building  
• Soot, ash, sawdust and burnt material(s)  

 

NOTE:  Acceptable material(s) are subject to change and it is the permit holder’s 
responsibility to ensure that all material(s) delivered to the site is acceptable.  Please 
check our website at www.easternregionalserviceboard.com for updates. 

By signing below and accepting the permit for usage of the Clarenville Transfer Station 
you acknowledge that you have read and agree to the terms outlined in this document.   

 

 

 
Permit Holder’s Signature 

 

 

 

Date 

 

http://www.easternregionalserviceboard.com/


Page 2

Statement details
Account number

Eastern Regional Serve.ce Board
3-255 MAJORS PATH
ST JaUNtS NL AIA OL5

Dateissued Jul 21, 2020

Account summary
This statement shows transactions posted to your account since your last statement. To view all transactions
related to your account, go to canada.ca/my-cra-business-account.

The Remittance account balances section below includes paid and unpaid amounts for 2020. For more
information on withholding requirements and calculating your deduction and remittance amounts, go to
canada.ca/payroll.

Previous balance 155,794.97 CR

Apr30,2020
May 14, 2020
May 28, 2020
Jun 15, 2020

Payment Apr 2020

Payment Apr 2020

Payment May 2020
Payment May 2020
Payment Jun 2020
Payment Jun 2020

Apr27,2020
May 1 1 , 2020
May 25, 2020
Jun 10, 2020

21 ,873.15 CR
1 7,102.69 CR
17,020.58 CR

CR

CR

CR

16,362.87

16,571.31

18,646.36

Jun 30, 2020
Jul15, 2020

Jun 25,2020
Jul 10, 2020

Currentbalance 263,371.93 CR

Explanation of changes and other important information

Are you eligible to take advantage of the temporary wage subsidy? To help Canadians with the economic
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Canada Revenue Agency will allow employers to reduce their
remittances in 2020. For more information about the timeframes, reduction calculation and eligibility criteria
go to canada.ca/cra-coronavirus-employers.

Did you know you can submit payroll documents online? The "Submit documents" service lets you or your
representative securely send documents electronically to the CRA. You can access this service directly
through My Business Account or Represent a Client. If you have not already registered for My Business
Account or Represent a Client, go to canada.ca/taxes-business-online.

F;remittance account Balances      
Date posted Description Date $ Amount CR/DR

  received    



EASTERNREGIONAL
\\i SERVICE BOARD

FIRE I SOLID WASTE I WATER I WASTE WATER

August 20, 2020

Dr. Andrew Furey
Premier, Newfoundland and Labrador
PO Box8700
St. John's, NL AIB 4J6

Dear Premier Furey,

On behalf of the members of the Eastern RegionalService Board lwould like to congratulate you on being
sworn in as the 14th Premier of Newfoundland and Labrador.

The Eastern Regional Service Board is comprised of twenty elected municipal representatives from
communities in the Eastern Region. By authority granted from the/?eg/ona/Serv/ce Board.4ct, the Eastern
RegionalService Board is responsible for providing solid waste management, fire and emergency services
and waste/waste water services to upwards of thirty thousand properties in communities across the
region. The Board enjoyed a very positive working relationship with the former Department of Municipal
Aff airs and Environment as wellas Minister Bragg. The Board looks forward to working with you and your
new cabinet in order to continue to further the goals of the ProvincialWaste Management Strategy.

If you would be interested in learning more about the initiatives undertaken by the Board please feelfree
to contact us.

Sincerely yours,

.z,t,.Dz£

Harold Mullowney, B.Sc., B.Ed., M.P.H
Chairperson

255 Majors Path ISuite3 ISt. John's INL IAIAOL5
Tel: 709.579.7960 I Fax: 709.579.5392 I Email: info(@ersbnl.ca I ersbnl.ca



THE PREMIER

GOVERNMENT OF

NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR

September 14, 2020

Mr. Harold Mullowney
Chairperson
Eastern Regional Service Board
255 Majors Path
St. John's, NL A1A0L5

Itucker@ersbnl.ca

Dear Mr. Mullowney:

Thank you for your letter and for the kind words of congratulations. It is a privilege to serve as
Premier of Newfoundland and Labrador.

Our administration understands the importance of collaboration and positive partnership in
reaching shared goals and advancing key issues and opportunities. It is by working in partnership
that best serves the people of our province.

As Premier, I would like to thank the Eastern Regional Service Board for the many essential
municipal servi^s it provides to communities in the Eastern Region of Newfoundland and
Labrador, an^T \pok forward to^orking with you.

Yours trul

DR. ANDR

Premier



EASTERN REGIONAL
-..''' SERVICE BOARD

FIRE iSOLID WASTE iWATER iWASTE WATER

August 20, 2020

Hon. Derek Bennett

Minister of Environment, Climate Change and Municipalities
Government of Newfoundland and Labrador
PO Box 8700

St. John's, NL, AIB 4J6

Dear Minister Bennett,

On behalf of the members of the Eastern RegionalService Board lwould like to congratulate you on being
appointed as the Minister of Environment, Climate Change and Municipalities, Registrar General and
Minister Responsible for the Multi-Materials Stewardship Board.

The Eastern Regional Service Board is comprised of twenty elected municipal representatives from
communities in the Eastern Region. By authority granted from the Reg/ona/Serv/ce Board,4cf, the Eastern
RegionalService Board is responsible for providing solid waste management, fire and emergency services
and waste/waste water services to upwards of thirty thousand properties in communities across the
region. The Board enjoyed a very positive working relationship with the former Department of Municipal
Affairs and Environment as wellas Minister Bragg. The Board looks forward to working with you in order
to continue to further the goals of the ProvincialWaste Management Strategy.

The Board would like to request a meeting with you and your staff to discuss the successful initiatives
undertaken to date and provide some insight into the future plans of the Board.

Sincerely yours,

Harold Mullowney, B.Sc., B.Ed., M.P.H
Chairperson

255 Majors Path ISuite3 ISt.John's INL IAIAOL5
Tel: 709.579.7960 I Fax: 709.579.5392 I Email: info(@ersbnl.ca I ersbnl.ca



From: Bennett, Derek
To: Lynn Tucker
Cc: Glynn, Valerie
Subject: RE: Letter from Eastern Regional Service Board
Date: August 25, 2020 10:28:06 AM

Good morning Lynn,
Thank you for your message.
We will be in contact in the near future to arrange a meeting with the Eastern Regional Service
Board.
I am pleased of the positive working relationship you had with the previous Minister and the
Department of MAE.  I look forward to working with ERSB on the issues you addressed in your letter
and working together for the betterment of our communities and residents.
 
Regards,
 
Derek Bennett
Minister
Department Environment, Climate Change & Municipalities
MHA Lewisporte – Twillingate District
P.O. Box 248
Lewisporte, NL   A0G 3A0
709-535-3780 (Lewisporte Office)
709-729-3048 (St. John’s Office)
 
 

From: Lynn Tucker <ltucker@ersbnl.ca> 
Sent: Friday, August 21, 2020 9:56 AM
To: Bennett, Derek <DerekBennett@gov.nl.ca>
Cc: Harold Mullowney <hmullowney@irishloop.nf.ca>; Danny Breen <dbreen@stjohns.ca>
Subject: Letter from Eastern Regional Service Board
 
Good Day,
 
Please see attached letter from the Eastern Regional Service Board.  The original has been sent by
regular mail.
 
Sincerely,
Lynn Tucker
Chief Administrative Officer
Eastern Regional Service Board
255 Majors Path, Suite 3
St. John’s, NL   A1A 0L5
Tel: 709-579-7960
www.easternregionalserviceboard.com
 

mailto:DerekBennett@gov.nl.ca
mailto:ltucker@ersbnl.ca
mailto:VGlynn@gov.nl.ca
http://www.easternregionalserviceboard.com/


EASTERNREGIONAL
-..''' SERVICE BOARD

FIRE I SOLID WASTE I WATER I WASTE WATER

August 20, 2020

Mr. Bill Bailey
12 Aspen Lane
Clarenville, NL A5A 4A2

Dear B

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to you for your eight
years' of participation on the Eastern RegionalService Board.

On behalf of alIBoard members, lwould like to pass along sincere appreciation for your
commitment and efforts in supporting the implementation of the Prob/nc/a/ W'asta
/Management Strategy. Your dedication and support has greatly contributed to the
success ofthe Board.

Please accept our best wishes in allyour future endeavours

Sincerely yours,
EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD

Harold Mullowney, B.Sc., B.Ed., M.P.H
Chairperson

255 Majors Path ISuite3 ISt. John's INL IAIAOL5
Tel: 709.579.7960 I Fax: 709.579.5392 I Email: info@ersbnl.ca I ersbnl.ca



 

BRIEFING NOTE 

Board Meetings and COVID-19 Public 
Health Measures  
 

BACKGROUND 
At the Board’s Committee meetings in September, several members expressed interest in 
resuming in-person Board meetings. 
  
To ensure the Board continues to operate in accordance with measures outlined by the 
Chief Medical Officer of Health and to ensure the Board has all information required to make 
the best possible risk-informed decisions during this pandemic, the latest information 
available to public agencies and local governments has been included in tonight’s meeting 
package. 
 
As members are aware our Board is required to hold six public meetings annually.  Before 
the pandemic, our Board rented space at a local hotel for one evening a month to hold its 
regular monthly meeting.  This room provided enough seating for all Board members, Board 
staff and invited guests.  In addition, seating for about 12 to 15 persons at the back of the 
room was available to accommodate any member of the public who wanted to attend our 
meetings. 
 
Since the pandemic and to be in compliance with public health measures, our meetings 
have been held by video conference.   
 
To ensure that meetings are public, the monthly Board meeting is broadcast on YouTube 
and anyone may watch the meeting as it occurs. 
 
 

CURRENT PUBLIC HEALTH RECOMMENDATIONS AND REGULATIONS 
Following the Committee meetings staff researched information available on both the 
provincial and federal government websites regarding COVID-19 and public meetings. 

The federal government’s Public Health website provides guidance for workplaces and 
businesses operating during the pandemic and notes the following regarding meetings: 
“Avoid multi-person meetings by using video conferencing technology where possible.” 

The Provincial Government’s Circular to Municipalities and Local Service Districts (No. 
DOC/2020/01470), 5th paragraph states, “In the interest of public health we are asking 
local governments to make every effort to conduct their public meetings online or by phone.” 
 
Furthermore, the document entitled, “NL COVID-19 Alert Level System:  Implications for 
Municipalities” for Alert Level 2, page 9, under Governance it states that “It is recommended 



 

that meetings continue to be done by video or teleconference, if possible, until further 
notice.” 
 
To ensure that our Board is compliant with current regulations and expectations, the CAO 
contacted the Minister’s office for guidance and direction.   
 
The Minister’s office confirmed: 

1. That the information included in tonight’s meeting package is the most recent and 
applies to Alert Level 2; 

2. The Minister’s office is not holding in-person meetings nor do they have plans to 
resume in-person meetings in the foreseeable future; 

3. The Minister’s office recommends that all ERSB meetings continue by video 
conference until further notice; 

4. Public Health measures state that all meetings should continue by video conference 
until further notice. 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
It is recommended that ERSB: 
 

1. Continue to hold all public meetings using video conference and broadcast on 
YouTube; 
 

2. Continue to hold all monthly committee meetings by videoconference. 
 

3. Follow the direction of the Chief Medical Officer of Health and/or the Minister of 
Environment, Climate Change and Municipalities regarding in-person meetings to 
protect Board members, staff and the public. 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. NL COVID-19 Alert Level System:  Implications for Municipalities 
2. NL Circular to Municipalities and Local Service Districts (DOC/2020/01470) 
3. NL Coronavirus Information Sheet 
4. Govt. Canada – Excerpt from Guidance Documents for Workplaces and Businesses  



1 
 

N
L

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 A
le

rt
 L

e
v
e

l 
S

y
s

te
m

: 
 

Im
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

M
u

n
ic

ip
a
li
ti

e
s
 

 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

Al
l 

Th
e 

C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

Al
er

t L
ev

el
 S

ys
te

m
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

N
ew

fo
un

dl
an

de
rs

 a
nd

 L
ab

ra
do

ria
ns

 w
ith

 a
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 s

te
ps

 th
at

 
w

ill 
be

 ta
ke

n 
as

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
re

la
xe

d.
 W

e 
w

ill 
m

ov
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Al
er

t L
ev

el
s 

gr
ad

ua
lly

 w
ith

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
in

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. W
e 

m
ay

 m
ov

e 
up

 o
r d

ow
n 

Al
er

t L
ev

el
s 

as
 n

ee
de

d.
 

Le
ar

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 C

O
VI

D
 -1

9 
Al

er
t L

ev
el

 S
ys

te
m

 a
t h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/a
le

rt-
sy

st
em

/ 
 F

o
ll

o
w

 p
u

b
li

c
 h

e
a

lt
h

 g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
a
ll
 A

le
rt

 L
e

v
e

ls
:*

 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

a 
pa

rt 
of

 o
ur

 d
ai

ly
 li

ve
s 

at
 e

ve
ry

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l: 

 St
ay

in
g 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 fo

llo
w

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 a
dv

ic
e.

 
Pr

ac
tic

in
g 

go
od

 h
yg

ie
ne

 (w
as

h 
yo

ur
 h

an
ds

, a
vo

id
 to

uc
hi

ng
 y

ou
r f

ac
e,

 c
ou

gh
 a

nd
 s

ne
ez

e 
in

to
 y

ou
r s

le
ev

e 
or

 a
 ti

ss
ue

). 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 2
 a

rm
 le

ng
th

s.
 U

se
 a

 n
on

-m
ed

ic
al

 o
r c

lo
th

 m
as

k 
w

he
n 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 

Fr
eq

ue
nt

 c
le

an
in

g 
an

d 
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n 
of

 h
ig

h-
to

uc
h 

su
rfa

ce
s.

 
St

ay
in

g 
at

 h
om

e 
an

d 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 o

th
er

s 
w

he
n 

yo
u 

ar
e 

si
ck

, u
nl

es
s 

it 
is

 to
 g

et
 m

ed
ic

al
 a

tte
nt

io
n.

 
W

ea
rin

g 
a 

no
n-

m
ed

ic
al

 o
r c

lo
th

 m
as

k 
if 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 s
ym

pt
om

s 
w

he
n 

go
in

g 
ou

t t
o 

ac
ce

ss
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

W
or

ki
ng

 fr
om

 h
om

e,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 s
ho

p 
on

lin
e 

an
d 

us
in

g 
cu

rb
si

de
 p

ic
ku

p,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

Li
m

iti
ng

 n
on

-e
ss

en
tia

l t
ra

ve
l o

ut
si

de
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
nc

e.
 

Ke
ep

in
g 

a 
lo

g 
of

 w
he

n 
yo

u 
go

 o
ut

 in
 p

ub
lic

 a
nd

 y
ou

r i
nt

er
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s.

 
 *N

O
TE

: A
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

es
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 w

ill 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
he

re
: h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/a
le

rt-
sy

st
em

/p
ub

lic
-h

ea
lth

-g
ui

da
nc

e-
fo

r-a
ll-

al
er

t-l
ev

el
s/

 
 Fo

r a
 li

st
in

g 
of

 th
e 

C
O

VI
D

-1
9 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 c

irc
ul

ar
s:

 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.m

ae
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

fo
r/c

ov
id

-1
9_

lo
ca

l_
go

v_
op

s.
ht

m
l 

 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/alert-system/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/alert-system/public-health-guidance-for-all-alert-levels/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/alert-system/public-health-guidance-for-all-alert-levels/
https://www.mae.gov.nl.ca/for/covid-19_local_gov_ops.html


2 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

Le
ve

l 5
 

  

• 
A 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
co

ul
d 

ex
pa

nd
 th

ei
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
bu

bb
le

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

e 
ot

he
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

d.
 

 Pu
bl

ic
 S

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
G

at
he

rin
gs

: 
• 

G
at

he
rin

gs
 a

re
 re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 5

 p
eo

pl
e 

or
 le

ss
. 

• 
Fu

ne
ra

ls
, w

ak
es

 a
nd

 v
is

ita
tio

ns
 a

re
 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
: 

• 
C

am
ps

ite
s 

ar
e 

cl
os

ed
. 

• 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

n 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
pa

rk
s 

ar
e 

cl
os

ed
. 

• 
G

ym
 a

nd
 fi

tn
es

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

cl
os

ed
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
yo

ga
 s

tu
di

os
, t

en
ni

s 
an

d 
sq

ua
sh

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 a

re
na

s.
 

• 
D

an
ce

 s
tu

di
os

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
sp

ac
es

 a
re

 c
lo

se
d.

 
• 

O
ut

do
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

, 
hi

ki
ng

, o
r r

id
in

g 
yo

ur
 b

ik
e,

 a
re

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
di

st
an

ci
ng

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 s

el
f-i

so
la

te
 fo

r a
ny

 
re

as
on

 
 H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

• 
Pr

iv
at

e 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
cl

in
ic

s 
ar

e 
cl

os
ed

, 
ex

ce
pt

 fo
r u

rg
en

t a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nt
 c

ar
e 

• 
Vi

si
to

r r
es

tri
ct

io
ns

 in
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
ar

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e.

 
• 

O
rd

er
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r l

on
g 

te
rm

 c
ar

e,
 

pe
rs

on
al

 c
ar

e 
ho

m
es

, a
nd

 a
ss

is
te

d 
liv

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

• 
Al

er
t L

ev
el

 5
 is

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t l

ev
el

 w
ith

 b
ro

ad
 s

w
ee

pi
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 O
rd

er
s 

ar
e 

in
 

pl
ac

e.
 

 • 
Pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 o

ffi
ci

al
s 

ar
e 

ad
vi

si
ng

 th
at

 tr
av

el
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ov

in
ce

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
ra

ve
l o

nl
y.

  
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

  
• 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
a 

le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
to

 h
ol

d 
a 

m
in

im
um

 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

ub
lic

 c
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
gs

. T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
y 

sh
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

ev
er

y 
ef

fo
rt 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 th

ei
r p

ub
lic

 m
ee

tin
gs

 o
nl

in
e 

or
 b

y 
ph

on
e.

 
• 

O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r p

ub
lic

 m
ee

tin
gs

 in
cl

ud
e 

liv
e 

st
re

am
in

g,
 v

id
eo

 
co

nf
er

en
ci

ng
 o

r t
el

ec
on

fe
re

nc
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 th
er

eb
y 

av
oi

di
ng

 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

.  
• 

M
in

ut
es

 m
us

t b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r e
ac

h 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ee

tin
g.

  
• 

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f v

id
eo

 c
on

fe
re

nc
in

g 
in

cl
ud

e 
Fa

ce
bo

ok
 L

iv
e,

 Z
oo

m
, 

M
ic

ro
so

ft 
Te

am
s,

 S
ky

pe
, W

eb
ex

 a
nd

 G
o 

To
 M

ee
tin

g.
  

• 
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

ac
t t

he
ir 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 

fo
r t

el
ec

on
fe

re
nc

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
.  

• 
Lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 m

ay
 c

ho
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 u

se
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 is

 g
iv

en
 a

n 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 c

al
l i

n 
to

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

to
 li

st
en

 to
 

th
e 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

 
• 

By
-E

le
ct

io
ns

 d
ef

er
re

d 
un

til
 fu

rth
er

 n
ot

ic
e.

  
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 


 

Lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 fo
cu

s 
on

 c
rit

ic
al

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 / 

es
se

nt
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
di

st
an

ci
ng

 a
nd

 a
vo

id
 g

at
he

rin
gs

 o
f p

eo
pl

e.
   

 

 

Es
se

nt
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e:
  

o
 

w
at

er
 a

nd
 s

ew
ag

e 
sy

st
em

s;
  

o
 

pr
iv

at
e 

ro
ad

s;
  

o
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 h

ig
hw

ay
s,

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 a

nd
 b

rid
ge

s;
 

o
 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

;  

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Bubble-Expansion-April-30-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Bubble-Expansion-April-30-2020.pdf


3 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

• 
R

eg
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 
po

st
po

ne
d 

or
 c

an
ce

lle
d 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
• 

N
on

-u
rg

en
t m

ed
ic

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
el

ec
tiv

e 
su

rg
er

ie
s 

ar
e 

po
st

po
ne

d.
 

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
• 

R
et

ai
l s

to
re

s 
th

at
 d

o 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
lif

e,
 h

ea
lth

 o
r 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
af

et
y 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
an

im
al

s 
ar

e 
cl

os
ed

 to
 in

-p
er

so
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 b
ut

 c
an

 o
ffe

r o
nl

in
e/

te
le

ph
on

e 
sa

le
s 

w
ith

 d
el

iv
er

y 
or

 c
ur

bs
id

e 
pi

ck
-u

p 
op

tio
ns

.  
• 

Sa
le

s 
of

 s
cr

at
ch

 o
r b

re
ak

 o
pe

n 
lo

tto
 

tic
ke

ts
 in

 s
to

re
 is

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

 
• 

R
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 a
re

 c
lo

se
d 

fo
r i

n-
pe

rs
on

 
di

ni
ng

 (t
ak

e-
ou

t, 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
dr

iv
e-

th
ru

 o
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 s
til

l p
er

m
itt

ed
). 

• 
Ba

rs
, l

ou
ng

es
 a

nd
 c

in
em

as
 a

re
 

cl
os

ed
. 

• 
C

in
em

as
 a

re
 c

lo
se

d.
 

• 
Pe

rs
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

sp
as

, e
st

he
tic

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 h

ai
r 

sa
lo

ns
, b

od
y 

pi
er

ci
ng

, t
at

to
oi

ng
 a

nd
 

ta
nn

in
g 

sa
lo

ns
, a

re
 c

lo
se

d.
 

  

o
 

lig
ht

in
g;

  
o

 
na

m
e 

an
d 

nu
m

be
rin

g 
of

 s
tre

et
s/

bu
ild

in
gs

;  
o

 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n/

re
m

ov
al

;  
o

 
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n;

  
o

 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
sy

st
em

;  
o

 
ce

m
et

er
ie

s/
cr

em
at

or
ia

;  
o

 
sn

ow
 c

le
ar

in
g/

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f r

oa
ds

;  
o

 
an

im
al

 c
on

tro
l; 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
;  

o
 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t; 

 
o

 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t; 

 
o

 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 p
la

nn
in

g;
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g.
 

 
 

Li
m

it 
bu

si
ne

ss
-re

la
te

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 e
ss

en
tia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

ly
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
tra

de
sp

eo
pl

e,
 p

es
t c

on
tro

l o
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
of

fic
er

s.
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

vi
si

ts
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

ut
si

de
 q

ue
ui

ng
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d,
 a

nd
 

co
ns

id
er

 re
qu

iri
ng

 v
is

its
 to

 w
ea

r c
lo

th
 m

as
ks

.  
 

 

 

N
L 

ha
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
.  

 

 

O
ut

do
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

, h
ik

in
g,

 o
r r

id
in

g 
yo

ur
 b

ik
e,

 a
re

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

ca
n 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
no

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 s
el

f-i
so

la
te

 fo
r a

ny
 re

as
on

.  
 


 

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

ts
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

. P
ub

lic
 m

ar
ke

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
o 

lif
e;

 th
er

ef
or

e,
 c

ap
ac

ity
 is

 li
m

ite
d 

on
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
pe

op
le

 th
at

 c
an

 a
dh

er
e 

to
 s

oc
ia

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 ra

te
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n.

 
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

• 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 P

PE
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

he
re

: 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/fi
le

s/
G

ui
da

nc
e-

on
-P

er
so

na
l-

Pr
ot

ec
tiv

e-
Eq

ui
pm

en
t-P

PE
-fo

r-E
m

pl
oy

er
s.

pd
f 

 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Guidance-on-Personal-Protective-Equipment-PPE-for-Employers.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Guidance-on-Personal-Protective-Equipment-PPE-for-Employers.pdf


4 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

• 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
em

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 fi

re
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.m
ae

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
fo

r/p
df

/M
em

o_
Fi

re
_D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
_C

O
VI

D
-

19
.p

df
 

 • 
W

or
kp

la
ce

s 
ar

e 
ex

em
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

in
 g

at
he

rin
gs

; h
ow

ev
er

, p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

of
 tw

o 
m

et
re

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

as
 m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

m
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

al
te

re
d 

or
 p

os
tp

on
ed

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
di

st
an

ci
ng

. 
 • 

It 
is

 p
re

fe
ra

bl
e 

to
 h

av
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

or
k 

fro
m

 h
om

e,
 if

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 O

nl
y 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 p
re

se
nt

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
m

e 
in

to
 th

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

ar
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 w
ea

r c
lo

th
 fa

ce
m

as
ks

. 
C

on
du

ct
 b

us
in

es
s 

re
m

ot
el

y 
(e

.g
., 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

al
ls

, v
id

eo
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s,

 e
m

ai
l),

 w
he

ne
ve

r p
os

si
bl

e.
 

 • 
Ev

al
ua

te
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 h
ea

lth
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 s
ta

rt 
w

or
k.

  S
ic

k 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

sh
ou

ld
 g

o 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

ca
ll 

81
1.

  
 

• 
R

ef
er

 to
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
W

or
kp

la
ce

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

he
re

: 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/fi
le

s/
G

ui
da

nc
e-

fo
r-W

or
kp

la
ce

s.
pd

f 
 

Le
ve

l 4
  

  

 • 
Pe

op
le

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r f

ur
th

er
 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
th

ei
r d

ou
bl

e 
bu

bb
le

 b
y 

si
x 

m
or

e 
pe

op
le

.  
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

di
vi

du
al

s-
an

d-
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

/e
xp

an
si

on
-o

f-h
ou

se
ho

ld
-

bu
bb

le
/ 

 Pu
bl

ic
 S

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
G

at
he

rin
gs

: 
• 

G
at

he
rin

gs
 e

xp
an

de
d 

to
 1

0 
pe

op
le

. 
• 

Vi
si

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ak
es

 re
m

ai
n 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 

• 
At

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l 4

, o
ur

 fo
cu

s 
is

 to
 b

eg
in

 re
la

xi
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 m
or

e 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, w

hi
le

 
m

in
im

iz
in

g 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 o
ut

br
ea

ks
. 

 • 
U

nd
er

 th
is

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l, 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 o
ffi

ci
al

s 
ar

e 
ad

vi
si

ng
 th

at
 tr

av
el

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ov

in
ce

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
ra

ve
l o

nl
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
pr

ov
in

ci
al

 fe
rry

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

w
ill 

no
 lo

ng
er

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 o
nl

y 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

ra
ve

le
rs

. T
he

 P
ro

vi
nc

e 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 fe
rry

 u
se

rs
 to

 tr
av

el
 a

s 
in

fre
qu

en
tly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
   

https://www.mae.gov.nl.ca/for/pdf/Memo_Fire_Departments_COVID-19.pdf
https://www.mae.gov.nl.ca/for/pdf/Memo_Fire_Departments_COVID-19.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Guidance-for-Workplaces.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/individuals-and-households/expansion-of-household-bubble/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/individuals-and-households/expansion-of-household-bubble/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/individuals-and-households/expansion-of-household-bubble/


5 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l a

ng
lin

g 
an

d 
hu

nt
in

g 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
. 

• 
G

ol
f c

ou
rs

es
 c

an
 o

pe
n 

w
ith

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

. h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/fi

le
s/

G
ol

f-C
ou

rs
e-

G
ui

de
lin

es
-M

ay
-

8-
20

20
.p

df
 

• 
O

ut
do

or
 te

nn
is

 c
an

 re
su

m
e,

 w
ith

 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

. 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

gu
id

an
ce

-fo
r-o

ut
do

or
-te

nn
is

/ 
• 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 p

ar
ks

 c
an

 o
pe

n.
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-p
ar

ks
/ 

• 
G

ym
 a

nd
 fi

tn
es

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 y
og

a 
st

ud
io

s,
 s

qu
as

h 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 in
do

or
 te

nn
is

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
re

na
s,

 d
an

ce
 s

tu
di

os
 a

nd
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

pa
ce

s 
re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

. 
• 

O
ut

do
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

, 
hi

ki
ng

, o
r r

id
in

g 
yo

ur
 b

ik
e,

 a
re

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
di

st
an

ci
ng

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 s

el
f-i

so
la

te
 fo

r a
ny

 
re

as
on

. 
 H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
: 

• 
R

eg
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
ill 

be
gi

n 
to

 a
llo

w
 s

om
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 

re
su

m
e.

 
• 

Pr
iv

at
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

cl
in

ic
s 

re
m

ai
n 

cl
os

ed
, e

xc
ep

t f
or

 u
rg

en
t a

nd
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 
• 

U
nd

er
 A

le
rt 

Le
ve

l 4
, c

ou
nc

ils
 m

ay
 h

ol
d 

an
 in

-p
er

so
n 

pu
bl

ic
 c

ou
nc

il 
m

ee
tin

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
us

ed
 c

an
 a

dh
er

e 
to

 s
oc

ia
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g 
gu

id
el

in
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r a

tte
nd

in
g 

is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 1
0,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
af

f, 
m

ed
ia

 a
nd

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 p

ub
lic

.  
 • 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
iti

ze
ns

 w
ho

 a
re

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 a

tte
nd

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

.  
Th

is
 c

an
 in

cl
ud

e 
vi

de
o 

co
nf

er
en

ci
ng

 a
nd

/o
r t

el
ec

on
fe

re
nc

in
g.

  T
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
no

tif
ie

d 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 a

dv
is

ed
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 to

 a
tte

nd
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
vi

rtu
al

ly
 o

r b
y 

te
le

ph
on

e.
 

 • 
By

-e
le

ct
io

ns
 w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 b
e 

de
fe

rre
d 

un
til

 fu
rth

er
 n

ot
ic

e.
  

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

• 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n,
 re

cy
cl

in
g,

 a
nd

 b
ul

k 
w

as
te

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

et
.  

 
• 

Pa
rk

s 
w

ill 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n 
w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

ca
n 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 p

ar
ks

 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
he

re
: h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

gu
id

an
ce

-fo
r-p

ar
ks

/ 
 

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 G
ar

de
ns

 c
an

 o
pe

n 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/fi
le

s/
C

O
VI

D
-1

9-
C

om
m

un
ity

-G
ar

de
ns

-F
AQ

s.
pd

f 
 • 

Be
ac

he
s 

an
d 

tra
ils

/b
oa

rd
w

al
ks

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n,
 a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
di

st
an

ci
ng

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 s

ig
na

ge
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
e 

in
 

pl
ac

e,
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

.  
 

 • 
D

og
 p

ar
ks

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n,
 w

ith
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
lim

iti
ng

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
in

 th
e 

pa
rk

s 
at

 a
ny

 p
oi

nt
 in

 ti
m

e 
to

 p
er

m
it 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
 

 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Golf-Course-Guidelines-May-8-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Golf-Course-Guidelines-May-8-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Golf-Course-Guidelines-May-8-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-outdoor-tennis/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-outdoor-tennis/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-outdoor-tennis/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/COVID-19-Community-Gardens-FAQs.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/COVID-19-Community-Gardens-FAQs.pdf


6 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

em
er

ge
nt

 c
ar

e,
 w

ith
 v

irt
ua

l c
ar

e 
op

tio
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r n
on

-u
rg

en
t c

ar
e.

 
• 

Al
l v

is
ito

r r
es

tri
ct

io
ns

 in
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
re

m
ai

n 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

• 
O

rd
er

s 
fo

r l
on

g 
te

rm
 c

ar
e,

 p
er

so
na

l 
ca

re
 h

om
es

, a
nd

 a
ss

is
te

d 
liv

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
re

m
ai

n 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

s:
 

• 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 s

om
e 

da
yc

ar
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
.  

• 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fir

m
s,

 la
w

 fi
rm

s,
 a

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
of

fe
r i

n-
pe

rs
on

 
se

rv
ic

es
. W

or
k 

fro
m

 h
om

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

, w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 
• 

In
-p

er
so

n 
w

or
ke

r a
nd

 w
or

kp
la

ce
 s

af
et

y 
tra

in
in

g 
w

ill 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 (e

.g
. 

St
an

da
rd

 F
irs

t A
id

, B
as

ic
 S

af
et

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
, f

oo
d 

sa
fe

ty
, e

tc
.).

 
• 

G
ar

de
ni

ng
 c

en
tre

s 
ca

n 
op

en
 fo

r i
n-

pe
rs

on
 s

al
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
• 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

la
w

n 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

op
er

at
e.

 
• 

An
im

al
 d

ay
ca

re
s 

ca
n 

re
su

m
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
. 

• 
An

im
al

 g
ro

om
in

g 
ca

n 
re

su
m

e.
  

• 
R

et
ai

l s
to

re
s 

th
at

 d
o 

no
t o

ffe
r e

ss
en

tia
l 

se
rv

ic
es

, b
ar

s 
an

d 
lo

un
ge

s,
 c

in
em

as
, 

an
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 

re
m

ai
n 

cl
os

ed
. 

• 
R

es
ta

ur
an

ts
 re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

 fo
r i

n-
pe

rs
on

 d
in

in
g.

 

• 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

n 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 p
ar

ks
 is

 n
ot

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
. 

 • 
D

um
pi

ng
 s

ta
tio

ns
 fo

r s
ep

tic
 w

as
te

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 h

ea
lth

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 a

re
 fo

llo
w

ed
.  

 • 
C

am
pg

ro
un

ds
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

. F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

so
ci

al
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 g

at
he

rin
gs

 th
at

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
 c

am
pi

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
an

d 
th

at
 s

oc
ia

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n,
 it

 
is

 n
ot

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 c

am
pi

ng
 in

 a
ny

 fo
rm

 o
cc

ur
 a

t t
hi

s 
tim

e.
 

 • 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 c

an
 re

su
m

e 
in

-h
ou

se
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. G

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r F

ire
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 u
nd

er
 A

le
rt 

Le
ve

l 4
:  

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
m

ae
/fi

le
s/

Al
er

t-L
ev

el
-4

-F
ire

-D
ep

ar
tm

en
t-

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t-G

ui
da

nc
e.

pd
f 

 • 
M

ot
or

ca
de

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
is

si
bl

e,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

he
al

th
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
re

 fo
llo

w
ed

 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
di

vi
du

al
s-

an
d-

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
/g

ui
da

nc
e-

on
-m

ot
or

ca
de

s/
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, p
ar

ad
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
Fi

rs
t R

es
po

nd
er

s 
ar

e 
no

t p
er

m
itt

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l. 

 
 O

th
er

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
/s

er
vi

ce
s 

n
o

t p
er

m
itt

ed
: 

• 
Al

l i
n-

pa
rk

 fo
od

 a
nd

 b
ev

er
ag

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

• 
Ac

tiv
iti

es
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

 c
on

ta
ct

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 te

am
 s

po
rts

 (f
oo

tb
al

l, 
ba

sk
et

ba
ll,

 h
oc

ke
y,

 s
oc

ce
r, 

vo
lle

yb
al

l, 
et

c.
). 

 
• 

Al
l r

ec
re

at
io

na
l f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pa

rk
 m

us
t r

em
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

 
(s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s,

 p
ic

ni
c 

ar
ea

s,
 p

la
yg

ro
un

ds
, e

tc
.).

  
• 

Al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ve

nt
s.

  
• 

A
ll 

p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
-b

as
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g.
 

 
• 

Ar
en

as
 re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

. 
 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/mae/files/Alert-Level-4-Fire-Department-Adjustment-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/mae/files/Alert-Level-4-Fire-Department-Adjustment-Guidance.pdf
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/individuals-and-households/guidance-on-motorcades/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/individuals-and-households/guidance-on-motorcades/


8 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

• 
G

ym
 a

nd
 fi

tn
es

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 y
og

a 
st

ud
io

s,
 te

nn
is

 a
nd

 s
qu

as
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 

ar
en

as
, d

an
ce

 s
tu

di
os

 a
nd

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 s
pa

ce
s 

re
m

ai
n 

cl
os

ed
. 

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
• 

Pr
iv

at
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

cl
in

ic
s 

ca
n 

re
op

en
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

ui
de

lin
es

. 
• 

R
eg

io
na

l h
ea

lth
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
llo

w
 s

om
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 re

su
m

e.
 

• 
Al

l v
is

ito
r r

es
tri

ct
io

ns
 in

 h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

re
m

ai
n 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
• 

O
rd

er
s 

fo
r l

on
g 

te
rm

 c
ar

e,
 p

er
so

na
l 

ca
re

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 a

ss
is

te
d 

liv
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

re
m

ai
n 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
 

Bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 
• 

R
et

ai
l s

to
re

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
os

e 
in

 
sh

op
pi

ng
 m

al
ls

, c
an

 o
pe

n 
w

ith
 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
.  

• 
Sc

ra
tc

h 
an

d 
br

ea
k 

op
en

 lo
tto

 ti
ck

et
 

sa
le

s 
ca

n 
re

su
m

e.
 

• 
Pe

rs
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 c
an

 
op

en
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 g
ui

de
lin

es
. 

• 
An

im
al

 g
ro

om
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ca
n 

re
su

m
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
. 

• 
Fu

rth
er

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f d
ay

ca
re

 
op

er
at

io
ns

.  
• 

R
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 c
an

 re
-o

pe
n 

at
 re

du
ce

d 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y;

 b
uf

fe
ts

 re
m

ai
n 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 

• 
Ba

rs
, l

ou
ng

es
 a

nd
 c

in
em

as
 re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
ed

. 

 
• 

Su
m

m
er

 d
ay

 c
am

ps
 c

an
 o

pe
ra

te
, w

ith
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

. 
 

• 
M

ed
iu

m
-ri

sk
 o

ut
do

or
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 c

an
 re

su
m

e 
(e

.g
., 

te
am

 
fie

ld
 s

po
rts

), 
sp

ec
ta

to
rs

 m
us

t m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
 

 • 
O

ut
do

or
 p

oo
ls

 c
an

 o
pe

ra
te

 w
ith

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e.
 

 
• 

R
en

ta
l c

ab
in

s 
an

d 
co

tta
ge

s 
ca

n 
op

er
at

e 
as

 p
er

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
re

nt
al

-c
ab

in
s-

an
d-

co
tta

ge
s/

 
 • 

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

ts
 c

an
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
pe

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
pu

bl
ic

-m
ar

ke
ts

/ 
 

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 m
us

eu
m

s 
an

d 
hi

st
or

ic
 s

ite
s 

ca
n 

op
er

at
e 

as
 p

er
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-

bu
si

ne
ss

es
-a

nd
-w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
co

m
m

un
ity

-m
us

eu
m

s-
an

d-
hi

st
or

ic
-s

ite
s/

 
 • 

Pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t i
n 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 p

ar
ks

 is
 n

ot
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

. 
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
: 

 
• 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 fo

llo
w

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 g
ui

de
lin

es
. 

 
• 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s 

(R
ef

er
 to

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l 3

): 
  

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
 

 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/rental-cabins-and-cottages/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/rental-cabins-and-cottages/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/public-markets/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/public-markets/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/community-museums-and-historic-sites/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/community-museums-and-historic-sites/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/


9 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

Le
ve

l 2
 

 Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ne
 2

5,
 

20
20

 
  

• 
Pe

op
le

 c
an

 m
ov

e 
ab

ou
t m

or
e.

 T
ho

se
 

at
 h

ig
he

r r
is

k 
of

 c
om

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

ue
 to

 
C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
sh

ou
ld

 s
ta

y 
at

 h
om

e 
as

 
m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 e
xc

ep
t t

o 
ge

t 
es

se
nt

ia
ls

 li
ke

 g
ro

ce
rie

s 
an

d 
m

ed
ic

at
io

ns
. 

 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

G
at

he
rin

gs
: 

• 
G

at
he

rin
gs

 a
re

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 5
0 

pe
op

le
 

w
ith

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g.

 
• 

Pl
ac

es
 o

f w
or

sh
ip

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 
re

su
m

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

.  
 R

ec
re

at
io

na
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

: 
• 

G
ym

s 
an

d 
fit

ne
ss

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n.
 

• 
Ar

en
as

 c
an

 o
pe

n.
 

• 
In

do
or

 p
oo

ls
 c

an
 o

pe
n.

 
• 

C
am

ps
ite

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 o
ffe

r 
ov

er
ni

gh
t s

ta
ys

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

s.
 

• 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

s 
eq

ui
pm

en
t c

an
 b

e 
us

ed
. 

 D
ay

ca
re

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
ee

cd
/e

ec
d-

co
vi

d-
19

-
ch

ild
-c

ar
e-

in
fo

rm
at

io
n/

co
vi

d-
19

-c
hi

ld
-c

ar
e-

op
er

at
io

ns
-p

ol
ic

y/
 

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

: 
• 

Th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ea

lth
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
llo

w
 m

or
e 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 re

su
m

e 
du

rin
g 

Al
er

t L
ev

el
 

2.
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill 

• 
At

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l 2

, t
he

 fo
cu

s 
is

 to
 c

on
tro

l t
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 w

hi
le

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 h

ea
lth

 s
ys

te
m

 c
ap

ac
ity

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 fu

rth
er

 re
-o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
no

un
ce

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

tra
ve

l: 
 • 

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 e
nj

oy
 “S

ta
y 

H
om

e 
Ye

ar
 2

02
0 

in
 

N
ew

fo
un

dl
an

d 
an

d 
La

br
ad

or
”: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
re

le
as

es
/2

02
0/

tc
ii/

06
24

n0
1/

 
 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Ju
ne

 2
5,

 2
02

0,
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 tr
av

el
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 a
t t

he
 

La
br

ad
or

-Q
ue

be
c 

Bo
rd

er
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
re

le
as

es
/2

02
0/

ex
ec

/0
62

5n
05

/ 
 • 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 3

, 2
02

0,
 in

te
rp

ro
vi

nc
ia

l t
ra

ve
l w

ith
ou

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

to
 s

el
f-i

so
la

te
 w

ill 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 N
ew

fo
un

dl
an

d 
an

d 
La

br
ad

or
, N

ew
 

Br
un

sw
ic

k,
 P

rin
ce

 E
dw

ar
d 

Is
la

nd
 a

nd
 N

ov
a 

Sc
ot

ia
, f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 

At
la

nt
ic

 C
an

ad
a:

 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

re
le

as
es

/2
02

0/
ex

ec
/0

62
4n

03
/ 

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

: 
• 

By
-e

le
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
, a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
re

 
fo

llo
w

ed
, s

uc
h 

as
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 h
yg

ie
ne

 
pr

ac
tic

es
. 

 • 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
is

 to
 k

ee
p 

ga
th

er
in

gs
 to

 5
0 

or
 fe

w
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
hi

le
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
   

 • 
It 

is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 m
ee

tin
gs

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
do

ne
 b

y 
vi

de
o 

or
 

te
le

co
nf

er
en

ce
, i

f p
os

si
bl

e,
 u

nt
il 

fu
rth

er
 n

ot
ic

e.
 If

 a
n 

in
-p

er
so

n 
m

ee
tin

g 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

: 
 

• 
St

ay
 in

fo
rm

ed
, b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
, a

nd
 fo

llo
w

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 
ad

vi
ce

; 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/eecd/eecd-covid-19-child-care-information/covid-19-child-care-operations-policy/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/eecd/eecd-covid-19-child-care-information/covid-19-child-care-operations-policy/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/eecd/eecd-covid-19-child-care-information/covid-19-child-care-operations-policy/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/releases/2020/tcii/0624n01/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/releases/2020/exec/0625n05/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/releases/2020/exec/0624n03/


7 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

• 
M

ar
in

a 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(i.
e.

 c
lu

bh
ou

se
s)

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
co

ng
re

ga
te

 a
re

 n
ot

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n 
(e

xc
ep

t w
as

hr
oo

m
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s)

; h
ow

ev
er

, b
oa

t 
la

un
ch

es
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 to
 o

pe
n.

  
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 g

ui
de

lin
es

.  
 • 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ee

ts
 fo

r b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s 

(re
fe

r t
o 

Al
er

t 
Le

ve
l 4

) c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
he

re
: h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

. 
 

• 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 s

up
po

rts
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

he
re

: h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/b

us
in

es
s-

su
pp

or
ts

/ 
Le

ve
l 3

 
  

Pu
bl

ic
 S

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
G

at
he

rin
gs

 
• 

G
at

he
rin

gs
 a

re
 e

xp
an

de
d 

to
 2

0 
pe

op
le

 
w

ith
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
 

• 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r f

un
er

al
 h

om
es

: 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

gu
id

an
ce

-fo
r-f

un
er

al
-

ho
m

es
/ 

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
C

am
ps

ite
s 

ar
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 to
 o

pe
n 

w
ith

 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

s.
 

• 
Su

m
m

er
 d

ay
 c

am
ps

 c
an

 o
pe

ra
te

. 
• 

M
ed

iu
m

-ri
sk

 o
ut

do
or

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 c
an

 re
su

m
e 

(e
.g

., 
te

am
 fi

el
d 

• 
sp

or
ts

). 
Sp

ec
ta

to
rs

 m
us

t m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
 

• 
O

ut
do

or
 p

oo
ls

 c
an

 o
pe

ra
te

 w
ith

 a
 

lim
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e.
 

• 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

n 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
pa

rk
s 

is
 n

ot
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

. 

• 
At

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l 3

, o
ur

 fo
cu

s 
is

 to
 c

on
tro

l t
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 w

hi
le

 fu
rth

er
 

re
la

xi
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

: 
• 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 u

se
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
un

de
r A

le
rt 

Le
ve

l 
4.

   
 • 

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

is
 to

 k
ee

p 
ga

th
er

in
gs

 to
 2

0 
or

 fe
w

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

hi
le

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
is

ta
nc

in
g.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 if
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 th
e 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 to
 m

ee
t i

n 
pe

rs
on

, b
ut

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 u
se

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 to
 m

ee
t v

irt
ua

lly
, t

o 
av

oi
d 

ga
th

er
in

gs
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
 • 

By
-e

le
ct

io
ns

 w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

e 
de

fe
rre

d 
un

til
 fu

rth
er

 n
ot

ic
e.

 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

: 
• 

As
 n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
, a

 fu
rth

er
 o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 g

at
he

rin
gs

 to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

w
en

ty
 (2

0)
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

 
• 

In
 A

le
rt 

Le
ve

l 3
, p

ro
vi

nc
ia

l, 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ca
m

pg
ro

un
ds

 a
re

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n 
fo

r l
im

ite
d 

ov
er

ni
gh

t c
am

pi
ng

, w
ith

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
. 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/business-supports/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/business-supports/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-funeral-homes/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-funeral-homes/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-funeral-homes/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-funeral-homes/


1
0

 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

be
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 h
ea

lth
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 

 • 
Vi

rtu
al

 c
ar

e 
op

tio
ns

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. 

 • 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r v

is
ita

tio
n 

of
 c

ar
e 

ho
m

es
 

ar
e:

 h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/g

ui
de

lin
es

-fo
r-s

up
po

rt-
pe

rs
on

-
de

si
gn

at
ed

-v
is

ito
rs

/ 
 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t: 
• 

Ba
rs

 a
nd

 lo
un

ge
s 

ar
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 to
 

op
en

 w
ith

 re
du

ce
d 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y.
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-
re

st
au

ra
nt

s/
 

 
• 

In
do

or
 e

nt
er

ta
in

m
en

t f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
ca

n 
re

op
en

 w
ith

 re
du

ce
d 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
(e

.g
. 

bi
ng

o 
ha

lls
, c

in
em

as
). 

 
• 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
bi

ng
o-

ha
lls

/ 
 

• 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

gu
id

an
ce

-fo
r-c

in
em

as
/ 

 
• 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-i
nd

oo
r-

en
te

rta
in

m
en

t/ 

 
• 

W
as

h 
yo

ur
 h

an
ds

 fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 w

ith
 w

ar
m

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 s

oa
p 

fo
r a

t l
ea

st
 2

0 
se

co
nd

s;
 

• 
U

se
 a

n 
al

co
ho

l b
as

ed
 h

an
d 

sa
ni

tiz
er

 in
 th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 
so

ap
 a

nd
 w

at
er

; 
• 

D
o 

no
t t

ou
ch

 y
ou

r f
ac

e;
 

• 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
pr

op
er

 c
ou

gh
 a

nd
 s

ne
ez

e 
et

iq
ue

tte
; 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ta
nc

in
g;

 
• 

W
ea

r a
 n

on
-m

ed
ic

al
 m

as
k 

or
 fa

ce
 c

ov
er

in
g 

w
he

n 
yo

u 
ar

e 
in

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ta

nc
in

g;
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
an

d 
ve

nt
ila

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

w
or

ks
ite

s;
 a

nd
, 

• 
St

ay
 h

om
e 

if 
yo

u 
ar

e 
si

ck
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s.

 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

: 
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
, w

ith
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
pe

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
lin

ks
: 

 • 
Pl

ac
es

 o
f w

or
sh

ip
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 to
 re

su
m

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

: 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

fa
ith

-b
as

ed
-o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

/ 
• 

G
ym

s 
an

d 
fit

ne
ss

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 to

 o
pe

n:
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
fit

ne
ss

-c
en

tre
-d

an
ce

-a
nd

-y
og

a-
st

ud
io

-g
ui

da
nc

e/
 

• 
Ar

en
as

 c
an

 o
pe

n:
 h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

ar
en

a-
op

er
at

io
ns

-g
ui

da
nc

e/
 

• 
In

do
or

 p
oo

ls
 c

an
 o

pe
n:

 h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
in

do
or

-p
oo

ls
-g

ui
da

nc
e/

 
• 

Fu
rth

er
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 o

ut
do

or
 p

oo
ls

: h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
ou

td
oo

r-
sw

im
m

in
g-

po
ol

s/
 

• 
C

am
ps

ite
s 

ar
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 to
 o

ffe
r o

ve
rn

ig
ht

 s
ta

ys
: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-c
am

pg
ro

un
ds

/ 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/guidelines-for-support-person-designated-visitors/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/guidelines-for-support-person-designated-visitors/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/guidelines-for-support-person-designated-visitors/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-restaurants/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-restaurants/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-restaurants/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-restaurants/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/bingo-halls/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/bingo-halls/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/bingo-halls/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-cinemas/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-cinemas/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-cinemas/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-entertainment/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-entertainment/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-entertainment/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-entertainment/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/faith-based-organizations/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/faith-based-organizations/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/fitness-centre-dance-and-yoga-studio-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/fitness-centre-dance-and-yoga-studio-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/arena-operations-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/arena-operations-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/indoor-pools-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/indoor-pools-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-swimming-pools/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-swimming-pools/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-swimming-pools/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-campgrounds/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-campgrounds/


1
1

 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

• 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 re

-o
pe

ni
ng

 o
f 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

pa
ce

s 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

th
ea

tre
s-

an
d-

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
-v

en
ue

s/
 

 R
et

ai
l: 

• 
Fu

rth
er

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r r
et

ai
l s

pa
ce

s 
ht

tp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-b
us

in
es

se
s-

an
d-

w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

gu
id

an
ce

-fo
r-r

et
ai

l-
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

/ 

• 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

n 
pu

bl
ic

 p
ar

ks
 p

ro
vi

nc
e-

w
id

e 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d:
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-p
ar

ks
/  

• 
D

riv
e-

in
 e

ve
nt

s 
ar

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 (i

.e
. d

riv
e-

in
 m

ov
ie

s)
: 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
ou

td
oo

r-d
riv

e-
in

-e
ve

nt
s/

 
• 

In
do

or
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

gu
id

an
ce

: h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-
in

do
or

-re
cr

ea
tio

n/
 

• 
O

ut
do

or
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

gu
id

an
ce

: h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
ou

td
oo

r-
re

cr
ea

tio
n-

ac
tiv

iti
es

/ 
• 

Sp
or

t g
ui

da
nc

e:
 h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-

fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
sp

or
t-g

ui
da

nc
e/

 
• 

Su
m

m
er

 d
ay

 c
am

ps
 g

ui
da

nc
e:

 h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n-
sh

ee
ts

-fo
r-b

us
in

es
se

s-
an

d-
w

or
kp

la
ce

s/
gu

id
an

ce
-fo

r-
su

m
m

er
-d

ay
-c

am
ps

/ 
 • 

La
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

(5
0+

 p
eo

pl
e)

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fe

st
iv

al
s 

an
d 

ev
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
co

m
e 

ho
m

e 
ye

ar
s,

 C
an

ad
a 

D
ay

 c
el

eb
ra

tio
ns

 (i
.e

. m
un

ic
ip

al
 fi

re
w

or
ks

 
di

sp
la

ys
), 

an
d 

m
us

ic
 fe

st
iv

al
s 

ar
e 

no
t p

er
m

itt
ed

. 

• 
M

id
-to

-la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

po
rt 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, (

su
ch

 
as

 ru
nn

in
g 

ev
en

ts
, s

po
rt 

to
ur

na
m

en
ts

, e
tc

.) 
ar

e 
no

t p
er

m
itt

ed
, d

ue
 to

 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
si

ze
 o

f g
at

he
rin

gs
. 

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
: 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
 g

ui
de

lin
es

. 
• 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ee

ts
 fo

r b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s 

(R
ef

er
 to

 A
le

rt 
Le

ve
l 2

): 
 h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/

co
vi

d-
19

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n-

sh
ee

ts
-fo

r-
bu

si
ne

ss
es

-a
nd

-w
or

kp
la

ce
s/

 
 • 

O
th

er
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r w

or
kp

la
ce

s:
 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/fi

le
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e-
fo

r-W
or

kp
la

ce
s.

pd
f 

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/theatres-and-performance-venues/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/theatres-and-performance-venues/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/theatres-and-performance-venues/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/theatres-and-performance-venues/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-retail-establishments/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-retail-establishments/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-retail-establishments/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-retail-establishments/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-parks/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-drive-in-events/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-drive-in-events/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-recreation/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-recreation/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-indoor-recreation/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-recreation-activities/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-recreation-activities/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/outdoor-recreation-activities/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/sport-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/sport-guidance/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-summer-day-camps/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-summer-day-camps/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/guidance-for-summer-day-camps/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/information-sheets-for-businesses-and-workplaces/
https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/files/Guidance-for-Workplaces.pdf


1
2

 
 

A
le

rt
 

L
e
v
e

l 
P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a
lt

h
 M

e
a
s

u
re

s
  

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
  

Le
ve

l 1
 

 D
at

e 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

   

 Li
fti

ng
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n:
  

• 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 p

at
te

rn
s 

of
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9;
  

• 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
va

cc
in

e 
an

d/
or

 tr
ea

tm
en

t; 
an

d 
 

• 
A 

st
ro

ng
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 s

ys
te

m
.  

 

• 
Al

er
t L

ev
el

 1
 is

 th
e 

ne
w

 n
or

m
al

.  
Th

er
e 

w
ill 

st
ill 

be
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
at

 th
is

 le
ve

l (
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

t a
 la

te
r d

at
e)

.  

              



1
3

 
        

Fo
r t

ru
st

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 C
O

VI
D

-1
9,

 p
le

as
e 

vi
si

t  

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
/  

    

https://www.gov.nl.ca/covid-19/


 

P.O. Box 8700, St. John’s, NL, Canada   A1B 4J6     709 729 5677     709 729 0943    www.gov.nl.ca 
 

Government of Newfoundland and Labrador 
Department of Municipal Affairs and Environment 

 

 
 
 
 

DOC/2020/01470 
 
 

CIRCULAR TO MUNICIPALITIES AND LOCAL SERVIC DISTRICTS  
 

 
 
On March 27, 2020, the Department of Municipal Affairs and Environment issued a circular to 
all municipalities and Local Service Districts for the purpose of providing clarity on local 
government operations during the COVID-19 pandemic. As we continue to address concerns 
around COVID-19, it is imperative that we all follow the measures outlined by the Chief Medical 
Officer of Health and the Department of Health and Community Services.  
 
As indicated in our earlier circular, local governments operate under specific legislation, 
including the Municipalities Act, various Cities’ Acts and the Municipal Elections Act. We 
would like to take this opportunity to provide further clarity on the issue of municipal council 
and LSD committee meetings.  
 
Municipal legislation requires that local governments hold a minimum number of meetings and 
also requires that the public be able to attend these meetings. The Department had previously 
recommended that public council meetings be temporarily postponed, unless necessary for 
critical operations. Government has since reviewed legislative timelines and wishes to advise 
Cities, Towns and Local Service Districts there will be no change to the legislative obligation to 
hold a minimum number of public council meetings.  
 
In so doing, we are recommending that local governments focus on critical operations and 
continue to minimize social contact and avoid larger gatherings of people, as per the direction of 
the Chief Medical Officer of Health and the Department of Health and Community Services.  
 
In the interest of public health, we are asking local governments to make every effort to conduct 
their public meetings online or by phone. 
  
Local Governments may conduct their public meetings through a live streaming, video 
conferencing or teleconferencing process, thereby avoiding physical attendance. Minutes must be 
completed for each public meeting. Examples of video conferencing include Facebook Live, 
Zoom, Microsoft Teams, Skype, Webex and Go To Meeting. Local governments can also 
contact their respective service provider for teleconferencing access. Local governments may 
choose which process they use, provided the public is given an opportunity to call in to the 
meeting and to listen to the proceedings.  
 
 



  

 
P.O. Box 8700, St. John’s, NL, Canada   A1B 4J6     709 729 5677     709 729 0943    www.gov.nl.ca 

2 
 

We would also encourage cities and towns to engage Municipalities Newfoundland and Labrador 
(MNL). MNL is working with their partners to support cities and towns that want to engage in 
video and teleconferencing as well as live streaming of meetings. Reach out to MNL if you 
would like to learn more about the low cost options they’ve come up with. You can reach them 
at covid19@municipalnl.ca.  
 
In line with its ongoing efforts to assist all local governments, MNL has partnered with TELUS 
Business to support those communities that need to setup video/teleconferencing, live meeting 
broadcasts, and cloud-based technology solutions for working remotely and securely from home. 
Many of these products and services include a 90-day free trial. Municipalities or Local Service 
Districts interested in pursuing one of these opportunities should reach out to MNL’s Director of 
Programs, Bradley Power, at bpower@municipalnl.ca, or call 1-877-651-0275, extension 106. 
 
The Department appreciates the important work of our councils and would like to extend our 
sincere gratitude for your continued support and dedication to your communities during this 
extremely difficult time. If you have any further questions please contact the appropriate 
Regional Manager as listed below.  
 
Lori Evoy                                                
Eastern Region                                    
lorievoy@gov.nl.ca                          
729-5020                                             
  
 
Ed Goodyear      
Central Region 
egoodyear@gov.nl.ca 
256-1061 
 
 
Holly Scott-Walsh 
Western/Labrador Region 
hscott@gov.nl.ca 
637-8010 
  
 

mailto:covid19@municipalnl.ca
mailto:lorievoy@gov.nl.ca
tel:729-5020
mailto:egoodyear@gov.nl.ca
tel:256-1061
mailto:hscott@gov.nl.ca
tel:637-8010


Is
 m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g 

d
is

ta
n

ce
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 

p
eo

p
le

.  
 

St
ay

in
g 

at
 le

as
t 

6
’ a

w
ay

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 
p

eo
p

le
 le

ss
en

s 
yo

u
r 

ch
an

ce
s 

o
f 

   
 

ca
tc

h
in

g 
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
. T

h
at

 is
 b

ec
au

se
 

w
h

en
 s

o
m

eo
n

e 
co

u
gh

s 
o

r 
sn

ee
ze

s 
th

ey
 

sp
ra

y 
sm

al
l l

iq
u

id
 d

ro
p

le
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
ei

r 
n

o
se

 o
r 

m
o

u
th

, w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

 c
o

n
ta

in
  t

h
e 

vi
ru

s.
 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9 

C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
S
 T

O
 E

V
O

L
V

E
, F

O
R

 U
P
-T

O
-D

A
T

E
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 Y
O

U
 C

A
N

 V
IS

IT
 w

ww
.g

ov
.n

l.c
a/c

ov
id

-1
9, 

PU
BL

IC
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

GE
NC

Y 
OF

 C
A

N
A

D
A

 A
N

D
 T

H
E
 W

O
R

L
D

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

.

W
H

A
T 

IS
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
? 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 is
 a

 

re
sp

ir
at

o
ry

 t
ra

ct
 

in
fe

ct
io

n
, w

h
ic

h
 

m
ea

n
s 

th
at

 m
o

st
 o

f 

th
e 

 s
ym

p
to

m
s 

ar
e 

fe
lt

 in
 t

h
e 

ch
es

t 
an

d
 

lu
n

gs
. 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 e
xh

ib
iti

n
g 

fl
u

-l
ik

e 
sy

m
p

to
m

s 

su
ch

 a
s 

fe
ve

r,
 c

o
u

gh
 o

r 
co

n
ge

sti
o

n
: 

•
D

o
 n

o
t 

co
m

e 
to

 w
o

rk

•
C

o
n

ta
ct

 y
o

u
r 

su
p

er
vi

so
r

•
C

o
n

ta
ct

 y
o

u
r 

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

•
U

se
 th

e 
se

lf-
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
oo

l a
t

w
w

w
.8

11
he

al
th

lin
e.

ca

W
H

A
T 

A
R

E 
T

H
E 

SY
M

P
TO

M
S?

 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

•
A

vo
id

 w
h

en
 p

o
ss

ib
le

•
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

se
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 tw
o 

ar
m

le
ng

th
s b

et
w

ee
n 

pe
op

le
•

St
ag

ge
r 

b
re

ak
s 

an
d

 lu
n

ch
es

•
C

o
n

d
u

ct
 m

ee
ti

n
gs

 in
 w

o
rk

 a
re

as
•

U
se

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 d
ev

ic
es

, e
m

ai
l, 

te
xt

•
N

o
 s

o
ci

al
 o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 e

ve
n

ts

   
   

C
LE

A
N

 Y
O

U
R

 S
U

R
FA

C
ES

 
D

ilu
te

d
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 b
le

ac
h

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s 
ca

n
 b

e 
u

se
d

 if
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
su

rf
ac

e.
  

Fo
llo

w
 m

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

r’
s 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
er

 v
en

ti
la

ti
o

n
.  

C
h

ec
k 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

p
ro

d
u

ct
 is

 n
o

t 
p

as
t 

it
s 

ex
p

ir
at

io
n

 d
at

e.
  

N
ev

er
 m

ix
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 b
le

ac
h

 w
it

h
 a

m
m

o
n

ia
 o

r 
an

y 
o

th
er

 c
le

an
se

r.
  

U
n

ex
p

ir
ed

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 b

le
ac

h
 w

ill
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ag
ai

n
st

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 w
h

en
 p

ro
p

er
ly

 d
ilu

te
d

.
M

ix
 a

 n
ew

 d
ilu

te
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
bl

ea
ch

 so
lu

tio
n 

ev
er

y 
24

 h
ou

rs
.

U
se

 o
nl

y 
di

sin
fe

ct
an

ts
 th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
dr

ug
 id

en
tif

ac
tio

n 
nu

m
be

r w
hi

ch
 is

 a
n 

8-
di

gi
t 

nu
m

be
r t

ha
t c

on
fir

m
s i

t i
s a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r u

se
.

H
O

W
 D

O
ES

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 S
P

R
EA

D
? 

•
Th

e 
vi

ru
s 

is
 t

h
o

u
gh

t 
to

 s
p

re
ad

 t
h

ro
u

gh
 r

es
p

ir
at

o
ry

 d
ro

p
le

ts
.

•
R

es
p

ir
at

o
ry

 d
ro

p
le

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 a
 c

o
u

gh
 o

r a
 s

n
ee

ze
.

•
Th

es
e 

re
sp

ir
at

o
ry

 d
ro

p
le

ts
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 v
ir

al
 t

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 f

ro
m

 p
er

so
n

 t
o

 p
er

so
n

 w
h

en
 n

ea
r 

o
n

e 
an

o
th

er
.

•
Th

e 
re

sp
ir

at
o

ry
 d

ro
p

le
ts

 m
ay

 a
ls

o
 la

n
d

 o
n

 c
lo

th
in

g 
o

r 
o

th
er

 o
b

je
ct

s.
•

It
 m

ay
 b

e 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
o

r 
an

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

al
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 b

y 
fi

rs
t 

to
u

ch
in

g 
a 

su
rf

ac
e 

o
r 

o
b

je
ct

 t
h

at
 h

as
 t

h
e

vi
ru

s 
o

n
 it

 a
n

d
 t

h
en

 t
o

u
ch

in
g 

th
ei

r 
o

w
n

 m
o

u
th

, n
o

se
 o

r 
p

o
ss

ib
ly

 t
h

ei
r 

ey
es

.
•

M
ay

 t
ra

n
sf

er
 f

ro
m

 w
o

rk
in

g 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
it

y 
o

f 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

.

H
A

N
D

 W
A

SH
IN

G
 B

ES
T 

P
R

A
C

TI
C

ES

W
et

 y
o

u
r 

h
an

d
s 

w
it

h
 c

le
an

, r
u

n
n

in
g 

w
at

er
 (

w
ar

m
 o

r 
co

ld
) 

tu
rn

 o
ff

 t
h

e 
ta

p
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ly

 s
o

ap
; 

La
th

er
 y

o
u

r 
h

an
d

s 
b

y 
ru

b
b

in
g 

th
em

 t
o

ge
th

er
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
so

ap
. 

B
e 

su
re

 t
o

 la
th

er
 t

h
e 

b
ac

ks
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

h
an

d
s,

 b
et

w
ee

n
 y

o
u

r 
fi

n
ge

rs
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
er

 y
o

u
r 

n
ai

ls
; 

Sc
ru

b
 y

o
u

r 
h

an
d

s 
fo

r 
at

 le
as

t 
20

 s
ec

o
n

d
s.

 

Ri
ns

e 
ha

nd
s w

el
l u

nd
er

 c
le

an
, r

un
ni

ng
 w

at
er

;

Dr
y 

ha
nd

s u
sin

g 
a 

cl
ea

n 
to

w
el

 o
r a

ir 
dr

yi
ng

 th
em

. T
ur

n 
of

f t
ap

s w
ith

 a
 p

ap
er

 to
w

el
.

If 
ha

nd
s a

re
 n

ot
 v

isi
bl

y 
di

rt
y,

 a
lc

oh
ol

 b
as

ed
 h

an
d 

sa
ni

tiz
er

 c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 p

la
ce

 o
f s

oa
p.

W
at

ch
 fo

r t
w

o 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 th
es

e 
sy

m
p

to
m

s:

•
Fe

ve
r o

r s
ig

ns
*

•
C

o
u

gh
•

He
ad

ac
he

∗ (
Ch

ill
s,

 sw
ea

ts
, m

us
cl

e 
ac

he
s,

 li
gh

th
ea

de
dn

es
s)

 

C
A

N
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 S

U
R

V
IV

E 
O

N
 A

 S
U

R
FA

C
E?

 

Th
e 

lif
e 

sp
an

 o
f t

he
 v

iru
s w

hi
le

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
bo

dy
 is

 u
nk

no
w

n.

O
th

er
 h

um
an

 c
or

on
av

iru
se

s c
an

 li
ve

 o
n 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 su
rf

ac
es

 fo
r u

p 
to

 7
 d

ay
s.

W
ith

 p
ro

pe
r c

le
an

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, v

iru
se

s p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

su
rf

ac
es

 c
an

 b
e 

ki
lle

d.
 F

or
 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n 

pr
op

er
 c

le
an

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, p

le
as

e 
vi

sit
 w

w
w

.g
ov

.n
l.c

a/
co

vi
d-

19
 

If
 y

o
u

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

se
 s

ig
n

s 
ge

t 
m

e
d

ic
al

at
te

n
ti

o
n

 im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
. E

m
er

ge
n

cy
 w

ar
n

in
g 

si
gn

s 
in

cl
u

d
e*

: 
•

D
iffi

cu
lt

y 
b

re
at

h
in

g 
o

r 
sh

o
rt

n
es

s 
o

f 
b

re
at

h

•
P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

p
ai

n
 o

r 
p

re
ss

u
re

 in
 t

h
e 

ch
es

t
•

N
ew

 c
o

n
fu

si
o

n
 o

r 
in

ab
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

ro
u

se
•

B
lu

is
h

 li
p

s 
o

r 
fa

ce

Th
is

 li
st

 is
 n

o
t 

al
l i

n
cl

u
si

ve
. P

le
as

e 
co

n
su

lt
 y

o
u

r
m

ed
ic

al
 p

ro
vi

d
er

 f
o

r 
an

y 
o

th
er

 sy
m

p
to

m
s 

th
at

 
ar

e 
se

ve
re

 o
r 

co
n

ce
rn

in
g.

 

P
ER

SO
N

A
L 

P
R

O
TE

C
TI

V
E 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

 
In

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 c
u

rr
en

t 
P

P
E 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

s f
or

 y
ou

r j
ob

:

•
co

ns
id

er
 w

ea
rin

g 
a 

no
n-

m
ed

ic
al

 m
as

k 
w

he
n 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
ist

an
ci

ng
 o

r b
ar

rie
rs

ar
e 

no
t p

os
sib

le
. C

ar
e 

m
us

t b
e 

ta
ke

n 
w

he
n 

pu
tt

in
g 

on
 a

nd
 ta

ki
ng

 o
ff 

m
as

ks
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n.

•
st

o
ra

ge
 o

f 
p

er
so

n
al

 g
ea

r 
su

ch
 a

s 
ja

ck
et

s,
 v

es
ts

 a
n

d
 r

ai
n

 g
ea

r 
ar

e 
n

o
t 

p
er

m
itt

ed

o
n

-s
it

e 
u

n
le

ss
 s

to
re

d
 in

 a
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

 w
h

er
e 

co
n

ta
ct

 w
it

h
 in

d
iv

id
u

al
s 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le

(a
n

 in
fe

ct
ed

 in
d

iv
id

u
al

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
le

ft
 r

es
p

ir
at

o
ry

 d
ro

p
le

ts
 o

n
 t

h
ei

r 
cl

o
th

in
g,

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 e
xp

o
se

 o
th

er
s 

if
 t

h
ey

 t
o

u
ch

 t
h

e 
cl

o
th

in
g)

.

•
u

se
 g

lo
ve

s,
 m

as
k 

an
d

 e
ye

 p
ro

te
cti

o
n

 w
h

en
 c

le
an

in
g 

a 
su

sp
ec

te
d

 in
fe

ct
ed

 a
re

a.

C
O

R
O

N
A

V
IR

U
S 

(C
O

V
ID

-1
9

) 

6
 F

EE
T 

SO
C

IA
L 

D
IS

TA
N

C
IN

G
 

EP
A

 A
P

P
R

O
V

ED
 

P
R

O
D

U
C

TS
 L

IS
T 

TO
 U

SE
 

A
G

A
IN

ST
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 

h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.a
m

er
ic

an
ch

em
is

tr
y.

co
m

/
N

o
ve

l-
C

o
ro

n
av

ir
u

s-
Fi

gh
ti

n
g-

P
ro

d
u

ct
s-

Li
st

.p
d

f 

(C
LI

C
K

 T
H

E 
LI

N
K

 A
B

O
V

E)
 

• •

So
re

 T
hr

oa
t

Ru
nn

y 
N

os
e

•

Lo
ss

 o
f s

en
se

 o
f s

m
el

l o
r t

as
te

•
Pa

in
fu

l S
w

al
lo

w
in

g

• O
R:

 S
m

al
l r

ed
/p

ur
pl

e 
sp

ot
s o

n 
ha

nd
s/

fe
et

•
Lo

ss
 o

f A
pp

et
ite

Di
ar

rh
ea



1+1 Government Gouvernement
ofCanada du Canada

Promote pt3ypiQql qjptqnQjng (keeping a distance of 2 metres
from others), which is one of the most effective ways to reduce
the spread ofillness.

If possible, reduce allphysical contact by enabling telework(e.g
work from home, use of email and teleconferencing)

Adopt a contact-less business model(e.g., drive-through,
delivery, curbside pickup)

Establish 2 metre separation between employees and/or clients
(e.g., desks, workstations, restaurant tables, or in meeting
rooms)

Avoid multi-person meetings by using video conferencing
technology where possible

Restrict occupant capacity of indoor spaces to reduce crowding

In narrow hallways or aisles, encourage unidirectionaltravel
where possible

Use visual cues to encourage 2 metre distance(e.g., accessible
signage, floor markings)

Reinforce general practices to maintain physical distancing, such
as avoiding greetings like handshakes

Identify a space where employees or clients can be isolated from
others if they develop symptoms and are not able to leave the
facility

https://www.ca nada .ca/en/pu bbc-health/se rvices/d iseases/2019-novel-co ronavirus-infection/guida nce
docu ments/risk-informed-decision-ma king-workplaces-businesses-covid-19-pa ndemic.html#al


	2020 Incorporated Towns Payment Activity Report at September 9 2020 JCD.pdf
	2020

	ADPEF8B.tmp
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	Brief Note - Draft Budget 2021.pdf
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	2021 Budget DRAFT 1.pdf
	Budget Summary Original Adj

	ADPA183.tmp
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	Briefing Note - Sunnyside Waste Recovery Facility Winter Closure LT Edits.pdf
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	Briefing Note - Road Concerns at Harbour Grace Waste Recovery Facility LT APPROVED.pdf
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	ADPE5E4.tmp
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT

	ADPCF58.tmp
	BRIEFING NOTE
	BACKGROUND
	CURRENT PUBLIC HEALTH RECOMMENDATIONS AND REGULATIONS
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	ATTACHMENTS


	Brief Note - HR Policy and Pay Scales Review SEP 30 2020 LT UPDATE.pdf
	EASTERN REGIONAL SERVICE BOARD
	BRIEFING NOTE / REPORT




